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Corporate Profile 

Kmart Corporation is one of the world’s largest mass merchandise retailers 

and the world’s largest multi-divisional specialty retailer. As of January 27, 

1993, Kmart Corporation was comprised of general-merchandise and spe¬ 

cialty retail business groups and important equity interests as shown in the 

following table: 

Description of Business 

General Merchandise 

US. Kmart 

International 

Specialty Retail 

PACE Membership Warehouse 

Builders Square 

PayLess Drug Stores 

Waldenbooks 

The Sports Authority 

OfficeMax 

Borders 

Equity Interests 

Meldisco subsidiaries 

of Melville Corporation 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

Discount department stores in the 

United States 

Discount department stores in Canada, 

the Czech Republic and Slovakia 

Membership warehouses 

Warehouse home-improvement stores 

Drug stores 

Retail book stores 

Sporting goods mega stores 

Office supply superstores 

Book superstores 

Footwear retailer 

Largest retailer in Australia 
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Financial Highlights 

($ Millions, except per-share data) 1992 

% 

Change 1991 

% 

Change 1990 

Sales 

General Merchandise $26,470 3.6 $25,548 2.6 $24,891 

Specialty Retail 11,254 24.6 9,032 25.8 7,179 

Consolidated Sales $37,724 9.1 $34,580 7.8 $32,070 

Operating Income 

General Merchandise $ 1,557 11.9 $ 1,390 7.1 $ 1,299 

Specialty Retail 254 3.8 245 48.4 165 

Consolidated Operating Income $ 1,811 10.7 $ 1,635 11.7 $ 1,464 

Net Income $ 941 9.5 $ 859 13.6 $_ 756 

Per Common Share: 

Net Income $ 2.06 2.0 $ 2.02 6.9 $ 1.89 

Cash Dividends Declared $ .92 4.5 $ .88 2.3 $ .86 

After Tax Return on Sales 2.5% 2.5% 2.4% 

Return on Beginning Assets 5.9% * 6.2% 5.8% 

Return on Beginning Shareholders’ Equity 13.7%* 16.0% 15.2% 

Return on Beginning Investment 11.0%* 11.6% 11.4% 

General Merchandise Stores 2,435 2,391 2,350 

Specialty Retail Stores 2,357 2,022 1,830 

* Decrease from prior year due to the company’s August 1991 $986 million conversion preferred share issuance. 

SALES BY BUSINESS GROUP 
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To The Shareholders 

We are pleased to report that 1992 was another year of record-breaking sales, net income and earnings 

per share for Kmart Corporation. Net earnings were $941 million, up 9.5% from $859 million in 1991. Earn¬ 

ings per share rose to $2.06 per share from 1991’s $2.02 per share, as adjusted for the two-for-one stock split 

distributed in June 1992. Earnings per share reflected an increase in the average number of common and com¬ 

mon equivalent shares resulting from the mid-1991 issuance of Series A conversion preferred stock. Total sales 

for 1992 increased 9.1% to $37.72 billion for the 52 weeks ended January 27, 1993, compared with total sales 

of $34.58 billion for the 52-week year ended January 29, 1992. 

In the fourth quarter of 1992, earnings were $535 million, an increase 

of 11.7% from 1991’s earnings of $479 million. Earnings per share rose to a 

record $1.15 from $1.06 in the fourth quarter of 1991, again as adjusted for 

the two-for-one stock split. Total sales for the period were $11.47 billion, 

an increase of 8.7% from the $10.56 billion generated in 1991. 

1992 was the 28th consecutive year in which dividends declared 

were increased. The Board of Directors increased the dividend 4.5% in 

March 1992 to an annual rate of $.92. Also in March 1992, the Board 

declared a two-for-one stock split that was distributed to shareholders in 

June 1992. 

The gains in sales and, more importantly, earnings demonstrate the substantial progress that has been 

made in a number of key areas of the corporation. Customers are reacting favorably to our “new look” Kmart 

stores, merchandise quality, fashion, service and pricing leadership. These factors contributed significantly to 

our record year. 

Our Kmart Renewal Program that was announced in February 1990 is progressing on schedule. In 

1992, 448 projects were completed. We opened 45 new full-size Kmart stores, replaced 73 stores, enlarged 

122 stores, closed 15 stores and refurbished 208 stores to bring their layouts, fixturing and merchandise assort¬ 

ments up to new store standards. At 1992 year end, 1,130 stores had been completed with the updated look, 

representing 50% of our U.S. Kmart stores. The planned improvement in these updated stores is being realized. 

As we move forward with the Kmart Renewal Program, we plan to integrate our Super Kmart Center 

strategy into the Program. We are achieving very encouraging results in our Super Kmart Centers, which fea¬ 

ture a full line of general merchandise along with groceries. As part of the Kmart Renewal Program, we are 

analyzing the stores that remain to be updated as potential relocations as 

Super Kmart Centers. We plan to complete approximately 200 projects 

in 1993, including 15 or so new Super Kmart Centers. Kmart will 

evaluate the results of these units, as well as the four Super 

i Kmart Centers now in operation, to determine future 

growth. Through the Renewal Program we feel there is a 

potential to open 400 to 450 Super Kmart Centers over the 

next five to seven years. 

While the Kmart Renewal Program is strategically important, 

it is only part of our commitment to our customers. As we update our 

stores, we remain strongly committed to providing high-quality fashion 

merchandise at low, low Kmart prices. 

We recently reaffirmed our commitment to low prices with a “price promise” advertising campaign 

that states clearly that Kmart will honor our competitors’ regular or currently advertised prices on identical 

4 

i*
 1

"
 



items. This is not something new at Kmart—we have always matched lower prices. This advertising strategy 

is part of our focus on the total Kmart shopping experience—brand names, outstanding quality, great fashion 

and low, low prices. 

Training our associates to be more sensitive to the needs of our customers also is part of Kmart re¬ 

newal. We are making our stores more “customer friendly,” both in appearance and service. We measure our 

progress in customer service to ensure that our programs are working. Last year we received 156,000 compli¬ 

mentary letters and phone calls about our Kmart associates that attest to the high and improving service level 

in our stores. By way of comparison, complimentary letters and phone calls in 1991 totaled 96,000, reflecting a 

64% increase. We are particularly pleased that our customers are recognizing the improvements that have 

been made in store operations. 

Our specialty retail group made excellent progress again in 1992, contributing $11.3 billion in sales and 

$254 million in operating profits, compared with $9.0 billion in sales and $245 million in operating profits in 

1991. All of the businesses had an outstanding year with the exception of PACE Membership Warehouse, 

which experienced a substantial decline in profits. The erosion of profitability at PACE was primarily the 

result of the poor performance of many of the 41 warehouses opened during 1991 and 1992, with a general 

softness in the warehouse club industry during the second half of 1992 also contributing to the profit shortfall. 

Aided by acquisitions and an aggressive new store opening program, OfficeMax has become a 

national office supply superstore chain. In June 1992, OfficeMax acquired OW Office Ware¬ 

house, with 41 OW Office Warehouse stores subsequently integrated into OfficeMax. An 

additional 61 stores were opened during the year. Then in March 1993, OfficeMax 

completed the acquisition of BizMart, Inc., an operator of 105 similar office products 

superstores. These stores are also being converted to the OfficeMax name, format and mer¬ 

chandise presentation. Plans call for the opening of an additional 55 new stores in 1993 

so, by year end, OfficeMax will operate approximately 330 stores and will generate 

approximately $1.5 billion in sales. 

During 1992, Kmart became a major factor in the book superstore busi¬ 

ness with the acquisition of Borders, Inc. in late October. Superstores are a 

rapidly growing segment of book retailing. The acquisition strengthens 

Kmart’s position in the book store industry. With Waldenbooks, we are the 

largest operator of retail book stores in the United States. In 1992, Walden¬ 

books entered the large-size book store business, opening nine stores under 

the Basset Book name. These stores have now been transferred to Borders 

so that Waldenbooks can concentrate on strengthening its already domi¬ 

nant position in the mall-based book store business and Borders can par¬ 

ticipate in the growth anticipated in the superstore end of book retailing. 

Despite almost no sales growth because of relatively weak customer traffic 

in malls, Waldenbooks achieved a 13% increase in operating income in 1992, 

a most satisfactory performance. 

We significantly expanded our PayLess Drug Stores operation in 1992 

by acquiring assets of the 124 unit Pay’n Save drug store chain in July. This 

acquisition gives us presence in two new markets, Alaska and Hawaii, 
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as well as increasing our market position in Washington State. Because of increasing discount store competition in its 

primary markets, PayLess is continuing to focus on its core drug store departments and is being positioned as a major 

provider of health-care related merchandise and services. Reflecting continuing growth in core departments, most 

especially pharmacy, PayLess operating income in 1992 was up 26%. 

The 1992 year was a continuation of the positive trend for Builders Square, with an 18% increase in sales and 

a 9% gain in operating income. Were it not for substantially higher store pre-opening costs and LIFO charges, the 

profit gain would have been approximately 30%. We are extremely excited about the results from our eight new 

Builders Square II stores. Plans call for the opening of 33 new Builders Square II stores in 1993 and the conversion of 

18 existing Builders Square stores into the new prototype in the coming year. 

The Sports Authority, an operator of large-format sporting goods stores, had an outstanding year in 1992. 

The store base increased to 56 from 36 during the year. Sales gained 71% to $412 million and operating profits in¬ 

creased to $10 million from $3 million the previous year, despite a substantial increase in store pre-opening costs. We 

are particularly excited about the success achieved with our entry into the New York metropolitan area in 1992 and 

look forward to similar results with entries into the Chicago and Boston markets. The Sports Authority is ahead of its 

schedule to achieve sales of over $1 billion in 1995 with a store count in excess of 100. 

We have developed a portfolio of high-volume, low-cost and low-price retail businesses outside our core dis¬ 

count store division that will continue to provide excellent growth opportunities for Kmart. We are beginning to real¬ 

ize significant benefits from integrating these category-dominant formats into retail power centers with a Kmart store. 

Our real estate expertise and financial strength help us work with developers to put together combinations of our busi¬ 

nesses in a single center—a power center—that we expect will draw many more customers in the value-driven retailing 

environment we anticipate in the years ahead. 

In developing Kmart’s business strategy for the future, we can no longer confine our thinking to the U.S. mar¬ 

ket. We are now operating in a global marketplace, and it is essential that we recognize and develop opportunities on a 

global scale. Kmart has long participated in international retailing through Kmart Canada and our 21.3% equity in¬ 

terest in Coles Myer Ltd., Australia’s largest retailer. During 1992, Kmart acquired 6 stores in the Czech Republic and 

7 stores in Slovakia. We are reviewing other retailing opportunities in Central Europe. We announced late last year an 

expression of intention to launch a joint retail venture in Mexico with El Puerto de Liverpool S.A. de C. V. This joint- 

venture company will build and operate combination grocery and general merchandise stores in Mexico that will be 

patterned after Super Kmart Centers in the U.S. These international investments are relatively modest and require 

only a small initial capital investment. However, with this investment we are positioning Kmart to participate in 

markets that are expected to grow rapidly as we approach and enter the 21st Century. 

We are confident that our key strategies for growth—the Kmart Renewal Program, service, pricing leader¬ 

ship, heavy capital investment in retail automation, continued expansion of our specialty retail formats and our pres¬ 

ence in international markets—have positioned Kmart as a true world-class retail organization. The strategies will 

enable us to realize our long-term objectives, including providing superior investment returns for our shareholders. 

Joseph E. Antonini 
Chairman, President 
and Chief Executive Officer 

March 23,1993 
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Renewal Strategy 

Renew: to make fresh, dynamic, exciting and fun. To apply 

new ideas to proven success. To make the next better than the last 

Kmart has changed. 

Crowned “the hip new shopping 

stop” by Women’s Wear Daily, the total renewal of Kmart 

embraces the spirit of today’s shopper—on-trend 

fashions, ever-improving quality and low, low 

everyday prices. 

Kmart fashions for the family and the home include, among others, top brands 

such as Gitano, Sasson, Brittania, Chic, Bonjour, Fisher Price, Everlast, Puritan, 

Wilson, Wrangler, Manhattan, J.P. Stevens, Fieldcrest Cannon and Wamsutta. 

Fashions from the Jaclyn Smith 

Collections are worn by more than 30 million 

women, including the actress herself. Sold 

exclusively at Kmart, the collections feature 

classic separates, sportswear, hosiery, lingerie, 

handbags, scarves, hats, jewelry and watches. 

At Kmart, renewal means fashion, excitement 

and quality. Great looks at low, low 

Kmart prices. 

Richard S, Miller 

Executive Vice President 

U.S. Kmart Stores 



From home electronics to sporting goods, 

toys, bed and bath, kitchenware, pharmacy, 

automotive and in every department, Kmart 

is an on-trend merchant that features recognized brand names 

and priced-right selection. It’s all part of Kmart’s total renewal. mb 

Renewal includes state-of-the-art retail automation that 

speeds merchandise from 19 Kmart distribution centers to store 

shelves in 48 hours, or even less. Efficient technology ensures 

the right product is on the shelf, at the right price and available 

whenever the customer is ready to buy. Point-of-sale scanning improves 

customer checkout. 

Renewal is energized by Kmart associates who deliver fast, efficient 

friendly service. Kmart’s low price promise, 

convenient layaway and “satisfaction 

always” policies reinforce the 

importance of customer care. 

The people of Kmart are making 

renewal work. Kmart renewal means 

friendly stores with wider aisles, brighter 

lighting, new fixtures, spotless floors, bold 

graphics, larger fitting rooms and one-stop 

shopping convenience. 

Glenn B. Smith 

Executive Vice President 

Merchandising 
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Renewal takes courage and foresight. With half of 

its stores updated, Kmart continues the most com¬ 

prehensive expansion and refurbishment program 

ever launched by any retailer. 

Customers love the new Kmart shop¬ 

ping experience. They tell us they like what 

they see and feel good about shopping 

at Kmart. Customers are the catalyst 

of our renewal. 

Renewal explores new horizons. 

In 1992, the retailer’s expansion stretched to Hawaii where Kmart 

offers island shopping at mainland prices. In Canada, Puerto Rico, 

Australia, the Czech Republic and Slovakia, Kmart is 

sharing its low price legacy with value- 

oriented shoppers around the globe. 

KMART RENEWAL; 
IT'S WORKING. 

Joseph R. Thomas 
Executive Vice President 

International and Administration 





Power Center 

Power: bold convenience, a center of excitement that 

offers tremendous assortments and unmatched value. 

A smart idea designed for today’s savvy shoppers. 

Kmart power centers make sense for the 

time-pressed, dollar-smart shopper of the ’90s. 

In one convenient location, shoppers 

discover the value and diversity of 

Kmart’s specialty portfolio. 

In Sayville, New York, for example, there’s a new-look Kmart store, OfficeMax, 

Basset (Borders) Book Shop and The Sports Authority aligned in one 

low-price, high-volume power center. 

The Kmart Specialty Retail Group includes PACE Membership 

Warehouse, Builders Square, PayLess Drug Stores, Waldenbooks, 

The Sports Authority, OfficeMax and Borders. 

Kmart specialty retailing combines the power of a 

successful large business 

with the entrepreneurial spirit and 

energy of small companies. 

Planned growth, ever-improving service and 

the right merchandise enable the Kmart Specialty 

Retail Group to deliver superior specialty value. 

George R. Mrkonic 
Executive Vice President 

Specialty Retailing 



There’s powerful opportunity to combine the 

right mix of specialty and Kmart stores to attract 

shoppers in communities across the nation. 

Many sports enthusiasts also equip 

home offices. Do-it-yourselfers often need 

book-smart guidance when building a new kitchen 

or a dog house for Pooch. Everything for the family 

barbeque, from the gas grill to the volleyball net, 

chef’s apron, hot dogs and fresh baked buns could be 

found at a Kmart power center— 

without ever moving the car. 



Super Kmart Centers 

Super: beyond big, superlative selection, capable of transforming 

the way America shops. An awesome shopping experience. 

Super Kmart Centers are the ultimate in customer service, quality and value 

in one store. Busy, budget-conscious shoppers enjoy 24-hour, 7-day-a-week, 

one-stop convenience. 

Customer-first service 

is the hallmark of the 

Super Kmart Center. 

Wide shopping aisles, appealing displays and pleasant lighting enrich the 

shopping experience. Super Kmart Centers feature fresh food, a hot and cold deli, 

seafood and bakery items, as well as a full line of the high-quality, fashionable 

merchandise shoppers enjoy buying at Kmart. 

With four Super Kmart Centers already 

operating, at least 15 more will be opened in 1993 

as part of the ongoing renewal of Kmart. 

SUPER KMART CENTERS: 
ONE STORE, ONE STOP, ONE GREAT IDEA 





Words that inspire passionate retailers. 

Words that recognize the customer is the force driving change. 

Indeed, Kmart has changed. 

Oar aggressive business strategy is paying off. 

And that is why Kmart has every confidence 

profitable growth wilt dramatically increase in the future. 



Six-Year Financial Summary 

Summary of Operations (Millions) 1992 1991 1990 1989* 1988 1987 

Sales $37,724 $34,580 $32,070 $29,533 $27,301 $25,627 

Cost of merchandise sold $28,485 $25,930 ' $23,895 $21,745 $19,914 $18,564 

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 7,781 $ 7,337 $ 7,012' $ 6,642 $ 6,184 $ 5,913 

Interest expense—net $ 432 $ 401 $ 399 $' 356 $ 313 $ 308 

Income before income taxes $ 1,426 $ 1,301 $ 1,146 $ 515 $ 1,244 $ 1,171 

Net income $ 941 $ 859 $ 756 $ 323 $ 803 $ 692 

Per-Share Data (Dollars) 

Earnings per common and common 

equivalent share , $ 2.06 $ 2.02 $ 1.89 $ .80 $ 2.00 $ 1.70 
Cash dividends declared per common share $ .92 $ .88 $ .86 $ .82 $ .66 $ .58 

Book value $ 16.64 ,$ 15.33 $ 13.47 $ 12.45 $ 12.56 $ 11.04 

Financial Data (Millions) 

Working capital $ 5,014 $ 4,682 $ 3,519 $ 3,685 $ 3,654 $ 3,003 

Total assets $18,931 $15,999 $13,899 $13,145 $12,126 $11,106 

Long-term obligations—Debt $ 3,237 $ 2,287 $ 1,701 $ 1,480 $ 1,358 $ 1,191 

—Capital leases $ 1,698 $ 1,638 , $ 1,598 $ 1,549 $ 1,588 $ 1,557 

Shareholders’ equity $ 7,536 $ 6,891 $ 5,384 $ 4,972 $ 5,009' $ 4,409 

Capital expenditures—owned property $ 1,435 $ 1,329 $ 814. $ 631 $ 570 $ 542 

Depreciation and amortization $ 685 $ 589 $ 531 $ 487 $ 464 $ 428 

Ending market capitalization $10,837 $10,901 $ 6,095 $ 6,640 $ 7,105 $ 6,440 

Weighted average shares outstanding 458 426 400 401 401 407 

Financial Ratios 

Return on sales— 

Income before income taxes 3.8% 3.8% 3.6% 1.7% 4.6% 4.6% 

. Net income 2.5% 2.5% 2.4% 1.1% 2.9% . 2.7% 

Return on beginning assets 5.9% 6.2% 5.8% 2.7% 7.2% 6.5% 

Inventory turnover 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.9 3.0 3.0 

Return on beginning shareholders’ equity 13.7% 16.0% 15.2% 6.4% 18.2% 17.6% 

Return on beginning investment 11.0% 11.6% 11.4% 6.8% 13.6% 12.3% 

Working capital ratio 1.9 2.1 1.8 1.9 2.0 1.9 

Debt and equivalent as a percentage 

of total capitalization 43.1% 37.3% 43.5% 43.4% 38.0% 39.4% 

Ratio of income to fixed charges 2.9 2.9 . 2.9 1.9 3.6 3; 5 

Employee compensation and benefits, 

per sales dollar 13.8% 14.1%. 14.6% 15.1% 14.7% 14.9% 

♦Results of operations for 1989 include a pretax provision of $640 million for restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges. 
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1992 Operations arid Financial Review 

Management's Discussion and Analysts 

Overview of Consolidated Operations 

Sales 

Sales increased 9.1% to a record $37.7 billion in 1992, 

compared to $34.6 billion in 1991 and $32.1 billion in 

1990. Consolidated comparable store sales increased 

2.4% and 3.7% in 1992 and 1991, respectively. 

Specialty retail group comparable store sales increased 

5.2% in 1992 versus a 9.0% increase in 1991. Refer to 

pages 20 and 22 of this report for a detailed analysis of 

the company’s general-merchandise and specialty retail 

groups, respectively. 

Cost of Merchandise Sold 

As a percent of sales, cost of merchandise sold including 

buying and occupancy costs was 75.5% in 1992, 75.0% 

in 1991. and 74.5% in 1990. The .5% increase from 1991 

was due to increased clearance markdowns of spring 

and summer merchandise lines in U.S. Kmart stores, 

especially apparel, the greater sales contribution of the 

lower-margined PACE Membership Warehouse opera¬ 

tion in 1992 and competitive pressure on gross margins. 

In 1991, the .5% increase was primarily due to a higher 

proportion of PACE sales which have a substantially 

lower gross margin, offset by improved gross margin in 

domestic Kmart store fashion departments and a lower 

LIFO charge. 

Substantially all of the company’s domestic inventories 

are measured using the last-in, first-out (LIFO),method 

of inventory valuation. In 1992, the inflationary impact 

on inventories contributed to a pretax LIFO credit of 

$30 million, in contrast to pretax charges of $15 million 

and $57 million in 1991 and 1990, respectively. The com¬ 

pany measures inflation using an internal price index. 

The 1992 LIFO credit and lower 1991 LIFO charge 

resulted from reductions in the company’s retail prices. 

For additional information regarding the company’s 

merchandise inventories, refer to Note (E) of the accom¬ 

panying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Operating Expenses 

Selling, general and administrative expenses, including 

advertising, were 20.6% of sales in 1992, 21.2% in 1991 

and 21.9% in 1990. The decreases in selling, general and 

administrative expenses relative to sales in 1992 and 1991 

were due to improved expense control primarily in the 

Kmart store division, lower advertising expense in 1992 

and a greater proportion of PACE sales in 1991. PACE 

has substantially lower operating expenses relative to 

sales. As a percent of sales, employee compensation and 

benefits were 13.8%, 14.1% and 14.6% in 1992, 1991 

and 1990, respectively. 

Interest Expense 

A schedule of the components of net interest expense on 

debt follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

Interest Expense on Debt $272 $234 $232 

Interest Income 28 15 10 

Net Interest Expense on Debt $244 $219 .$222 

The increase in net interest expense in 1992 was due to 

higher average borrowings as a result of capital expendi¬ 

tures related to the store modernization program, acqui¬ 

sitions and increased inventory, partially offset by lower 

interest rates on commercial paper. The decrease in net 

interest expense on debt in 1991 was due to the issuance 

of conversion preferred shares in August. 1991 and lower 

interest rates on commercial paper, partially offset by 

increased average borrowings resulting primarily from 

the Kmart store modernization program, expansion in 

the specialty retail group and increased Kmart store 

inventories. The company’s weighted average interest 

rates on total debt were 7.6% in 1992, 8.5% in 1991 and 

9.3% in 1990. Weighted average interest rates for short¬ 

term borrowings were 3.6%, 6.1% and 8.3% for 1992, 

1991 and 1990, respectively. 

Net Income 

Net income for the year was $941 million, an increase of 

9.5% from 1991 net income of $859 million. Net income 

increased in 1992 due to improved sales and a significant 

emphasis on cost control, partially offset by reduced 

earnings at PACE and a one-time charge of $12 million, 

net of tax, related to the company’s guarantee of certain 

Bargain Harold’s leases. 

Earnings per share were $2.06 in 1992, compared with 

$2.02 and $1.89 in 1991 and 1990, respectively, despite a 

substantial profit shortfall at PACE and a 7.4% increase 

in weighted shares outstanding, primarily as a result of 

the August 1991 conversion preferred share offering. 

The effective income tax rate was 34.0% in 1992, 1991 

and 1990. Refer to Note (H) of the accompanying 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further 

information regarding income taxes. 
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J992 Operations and Financial 'Review 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Effects of Inflation 

Kmart Corporation’s financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis under generally 
accepted accounting principles. The company uses the 
LIFO method of inventory valuation in its historical 
financial statements; therefore, the cost of merchandise 
sold approximates current cost. In addition, because the 
company is refurbishing existing stores and opening new 
stores i depreciation and amortization expense more 
closely approximate current cost. 

Cash Flow 

Company funds generated by operations, investing and 
financing activities as reported in the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows on page 33 are summarized 
below. Note (D) of the accompanying Notes to Con¬ 
solidated Financial Statements contains additional 
information regarding the Consolidated Statements 
of Cash Flows. 

Net cash provided by operations was $852 million, 
compared with $1,215 million and $1,154 million in 1991 
and 1990, respectively. The change in 1992 was due pri¬ 
marily to an increase in merchandise inventories net of 
trade payables and an increase in property held for 
resale, partially offset by increased net income and 
depreciation. The increase in cash provided by opera¬ 
tions in 1991 was due to increased earnings and depreci¬ 
ation, partially offset by increased inventories resulting 
from store openings and higher inventories in U.S. 
Kmart stores. 

In U.S. Kmart stores, inventory increased 8.0% over 
1991 compared to a 7.1% increase in 1991. The 1992 
change resulted from increased U.S. Kmart inventory 
for new and enlarged stores and a slight increase in com¬ 
parable store inventory levels from 1991. The 1991 inven¬ 
tory increase was due to new and enlarged stores and an 
increased level of basic merchandise in Kmart store 
hardline departments: 

Depreciation and amortization expense are recognized 
in determining net income, but do not require cash out¬ 
lays. These expenses have been steadily rising each year 
and are expected to continue to increase, due to larger 
capital expenditures for the Kmart store modernization 
program and the specialty retail group’s aggressive 
expansion program. 

Net cash used for investing was $1,832 million in 1992, 
$1,413 million in 1991 and $1,072 million in 1990. Cash 
used for investing was primarily comprised-of capital 
expenditures for owned property and, in 1992, the ac¬ 
quisition of Pay’n Saye assets and OW Office Ware¬ 
house and the purchase of 13 department stores in the 
Czech Republic and Slovakia. Capital expenditures 
for the general-merchandise group, which included 
distribution centers, refurbishments, expansions and 

store openings, were $1,110 million, $1,035 million and 
$635 million in 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. The 
increases in general-merchandise group capital expendi¬ 
tures in 1992 and 1991 were due to the Kmart store mod¬ 
ernization program. Capital expenditures in the spe¬ 
cialty retail group were primarily, for new store openings 
resulting from the group’s aggressive expansion pro¬ 
gram, and totaled $325 million in ]992, $294 million in 
1991 and $179 million in 1990. Net cash used for 1992 
acquisitions totaled $372 million. In 1991, net cash used 
for investing included $115 million for the acquisition of 
a controlling interest in OfficeMax. 

The company plans to integrate the new Super Kmart 
Center concept into the U.S. Kmart store modernization 
program. During 1993, Kmart will assess the remaining 
stores to be updated as potential relocations to Super 
Kmart Centers. A Super Kmart Center features a full 
line of Kmart general merchandise along with groceries. 
As a result of this assessment, capital expenditures will 
decrease in 1993, approximate 1992 levels in 1994 and 
subsequently increase again in 1995. The Kmart store 
modernization program is expected to be substantially 
complete in 1995. 

Net cash provided by financing was $1,026 million in 
1992 and $485 million in 1991, compared with net cash 
used for financing of $157 million in 1990. The 1992 
change was due primarily to a $590 million increase in 
notes payable and proceeds of $1,012 million from 
1992 debt issuances and mortgage financing. The 1991 
change was due primarily to $986 million in proceeds 
from the Series A conversion preferred stock offering 
and $700 million in proceeds from the issuance of 
medium-term notes and long-term debt, offset by a 
reduction in notes payable. 

Due to the seasonal-nature of the retail industry, the 
company continues to utilize commercial paper and 
revolving credit to cover peak working capita! require¬ 
ments. Average short-term borrowings outstanding dur¬ 
ing 1992,1991 and 1990 were $1,136 million, $1,093 mil¬ 
lion and $1,068 million, respectively. The maximum 
amount of aggregate short-term borrowings outstanding 
during 1992 was $2,371 million, compared with 
$1,509 million and $1,747 million in 1991 and 1990, re¬ 
spectively. Total short-term lines of credit available and 
unused were $1,339 million, $789 million and $880 mil¬ 
lion at the end of 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. 

Total dividends paid during 1992 were $448 million, 
compared with $375 million in 1991 and $340 million in 
1990. Dividends paid per common share were $.91, $.87 
and $.83 in 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. Dividends 
paid in 1992 and 1991 per Series A conversion preferred 
share were $3.41 and $1.06, respectively. Dividends 
paid per Series B convertible preferred share were 
$1.44 in 1992. 
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Capital Structure 

The following three-year analysis of the company’s capital structure summarizes Kmart Corporation's total debt and 

equivalent and total capitalization: 

(Millions) 1992 % 1991 % 1990 % 

Long-term debt due within one year $ 117 .8 $ 39 .4 $ 51 .5 
Capital lease obligations due within one year 113 .8 107 1.0 102 1.0 
Notes payable 590 4.3 — 658 6.7 
Long-term debt - . 3,237 23.6 2,287 20.1 . 1,701 17.3 
Capital lease obligations and other 1,862 13.6 1,802 ■15.8 1,762 18.0 

Total debt and equivalent 5,919 43.1 4,235 37.3 4,274 43.5 
Deferred income taxes 268 2.0 234 2.0 157 1.6 
Shareholders’ equity . 7,536 54.9 6,891 60.7 5,384 54.9 

Total capitalization $13,723 100,0 $11,360 100.0 $9,815 . 100.0 

On October 30, 1992, the company issued 784,938 

shares of Series B convertible preferred stock in ex¬ 

change for all of the outstanding stock of Borders, Inc. 

Subject to adjustment in certain events, each share of 

Series B preferred stock is convertible into 6.49 shares 

of common stock. 

In August 1991, the company issued 23,000,000 

$3.41 Depositary Shares, each representing one-quarter 

of a share of Series A conversion preferred stock,.for . 

$44 per Depositary Share. Net proceeds to the company 

totaled $986 million. 

On February 1, 1993, subsequent to year end, the . 

company issued $300 million 7.95% debentures due 

February 1, 2023. The debentures are not redeemable 

prior to maturity. 

Financial Objective 

Kmart Corporation's financial policy is designed to 

provide the company and its shareholders with an opti¬ 

mum return on investment, a solid capital structure and 

a high degree of financial flexibility. Obtaining opti¬ 

mum return on investment requires deployment of the 

company’s assets and resources where they will provide 

the best long-term’return. In seeking optimum return, 

Kmart management continues to review potential 

retail investment opportunities, both domestically and 

internationally, in addition to funding an improved 

merchandise mix, the refurbishment, relocation and 

expansion of existing U.S. Kmart stores, and the expan¬ 

sion and refurbishment of the company’s specialty retail 

operations. In addition, Kmart management sold Or 

closed Kmart and specialty stores which did not gener¬ 

ate sufficient returns. Kmart management expects that 

future funding required to finance refurbishment of 

existing stores, future expansions and relocations, and 

acquisitions will be provided primarily by internally 

generated funds, additional debt offerings, the sale and 

leaseback or mortgaging of owned properties and the 

leasing of land and buildings. 

Analysis of General Merchandise Operations 

At January 27,1993, the general-merchandise group 

consisted of both domestic and international opera¬ 

tions. A total of 2,282 Kmart stores were located in the 

United States and Puerto Rico. Kmart’s international 

operations include 127 Kmart stores in Canada and 

13 stores in the Czech Republic and Slovakia. Refer to 

Npte (L) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for additional information regard¬ 

ing the company’s general-merchandise operations. 
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A three-year summary of the general-merchandise group’s sales and operating income follows: 

(Millions U.S. $) 1992 
% 

Change 1991 
% 

Change 1990 

Sales 

. United States $25,326 3.4 $24,488 2.9, $23,792 
International 1,144 8.0 1,060 (3.6) 1,099 

Total Sales $26,470 3.6 $25,548 2.6 $24,891 

Operating Income 

United States $ 1,511 10.5 $ 1,367. 8.8 $ 1,257 

International 46 — 23 (44.7) 42 

Total Operating Income $ 1,557 1J.9 $ 1,390 ■ 7.1 . $ 1,299 

Capital Expenditures—Owned Property $ 1,110 $ 1,035 $ 635 

CJ.S. General Merchandise Operations 

Sales in domestic Kmart stores.increased 3.4% in 1992 due 

to a 1.5% comparable store sales increase, store openings 

and improved sales in the prescription drug, jewelry and 

home fashions departments. Sales per square foot in 

U.S. Kmart stores, including unconsolidated Kmart store 

licensee sales, were $181 in 1992. Both comparable store 

sales and sales per square foot were affected by competi¬ 

tion, lower selling prices and interruption caused by the 

store modernization program in 1992. 

Domestic Kmart store operating income increased 10.5% 

to $1,511 million in 1992 due primarily to an increased 

emphasis on cost control, which included the company’s 

ability to reduce product procurement costs, and a lower 

LIFO charge, partially offset by a decline in gross margin 

due to increased competitive pricing pressure and spring 

and summer seasonal clearance activity. In 1992, operating 

income also benefitted from U.S. Kmart cost control 

measures, such as better controlled store hours due to 

improved labor scheduling, revised human resource 

initiatives, including elimination of Sunday overtime, 

Christmas remembrance and changed vacation policies, 

and reduced promotional advertising expense. As many of 

the cost control programs were implemented in late 1991, 

the full impact on lowering expense was realized in 1992. 

During 1992, new Super Kmart Centers produced encour¬ 

aging results. These 150,000 to 185,000-square-foot stores 

feature a full line of Kmart general merchandise and 

groceries. At January 27,1993, four Super Kmart Centers 

were in operation, including two American Fare stores 

which were converted to Super Kmart Centers during 

1992. Within the context of the store modernization pro¬ 

gram, Kmart is analyzing the remaining stores to be up¬ 

dated as potential relocations for Super Kmart Centers, 

The company plans to complete approximately 200 store 

modernization projects during 1993, including approxi¬ 

mately 15 Super Kmart Centers. There is potential to open 

400 to 450 Super Kmart Centers over the next five to seven 

years. Activity for the Kmart store modernization program 

since inception is summarized in the following table: 

1990 1991 1992 
Total 1993 

Complete Plan 

New stores ' 53 55 45 153 62 

Store relocations 40 51 ■73 164 64 

Store expansions. 93 164 122 379 54 

Store refurbishmCnts 22 204 208 434 ’ 20 

Totals 208 474 448 1,130 200 

The.2.9% increase in 1991 domestic Kmart store sales was 

principally due to 55 new store openings and a 2.2% com¬ 

parable stpre sales increase, resulting from the effectiveness 

of the company’s everyday low price program and 

improved fashion, over-the-counter drug and pharmacy 

sales. Sales per square foot were $186 and $190 in 1991 and 

1990, respectively. The decline in sales per square foot in 

1991 was due primarily to the interruption, of moderniza¬ 

tion projects during the year and the completion of the 

projects late in the year. Domestic Kmart store operating 

income increased 8.8% to $1,367 million in 1991 due to 

improved gross margins in fashion departments, tight 

expense control and a lower LIFO charge. During 1991, 

Kmart carefully monitored store hours, and eliminated 

Sunday overtime and Christmas remembrance in favor 

of a 10% employee discount. 
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International Genera! Merchandise Operations 
International operations consist primarily of 127 Kmart 
stores in Canada and 13 department stores located in the 
Czech Republic and Slovakia. The Central European 
stores were acquired in mid-1992 and represent the 
company’s entry into that market. Kmart will develop 
technology, state-of-the-art distribution methods and 
merchandising skills to modernize, refurbish and . 
streamline operations in the two European countries. 

International sales.increased 8.0% in 1992, compared 
with a 3.6% decrease in 1991. The 1992 increase resulted 
primarily from the purchase of the Central European 
stores in mid-1992. Kmart Canada’s 1992 sales were 
positively impacted by a strong Christmas season par¬ 
tially offset by weak economic conditions. Results in 
U.S. dollars were adversely affected by deterioration 
of the Canadian exchange rate throughout the. year. 

Czech and Slovak operations were profitable in 1992, 
and operating profit at Kmart Canada improved signifi¬ 
cantly over 1991 due to the excellent Christmas season 
and strong expense control. International results in 1991 
included Only Kmart Canada and reflected a severely 
depressed Canadian economy, adoption of a Federal 
Goods and Services Tax and the closing of Kresge 
stores. The Canadian average dollar exchange rates were 
.8226 in 1992, .8708 in 1991 and .8574 in 1990. 

As part of the company’s international expansion 
. strategy, Kmart is currently negotiating agreements for a 
joint venture in Mexico and a licensing/lease agreement 

. in Hungary. These agreements are expected to be 
finalized in the first quarter of 1993. 

The following table.highlights the general-merchandise 
group’s store activity during 1992: 

End 
1990 

End 
1991 Acquired 

1992 Activity 

Opened Closed End 

Planned 
End 
1993 

Kmart 
United States 2,205 2,249 — 121 88 2,282 2,326 
Canada . . 125 126 — 1 — 127 126 

Czech Republic and Slovakia — — ■ 13 / — ■ — 13 13 
Other _20 16 — — 3 13 13 

Total General Merchandise 2,350 2,391 13 122 _91 2,435 2,478 

General-Merchandise Selling 
Square Feet (Millions) 142 151 159 

General-Merchandise Store Sales 
per Square Foot $189 $184 $179 

Analysis of Specialty Retail Operations 

At January 27, 1993, the specialty retail group, the Sports Authority, OfficeMax and Borders. The specialty 
largest multi-divisional specialty retailer in the world, retail group continued its aggressive store expansion 
consisted of PACE Membership Warehouse, Builders program as illustrated in the following table: 
Square, PayLess Drug Stores, Waldenbooks, The 

End 
1990 

End 
1991 Acquired 

1992 Activity 

Opened Closed End 

Planned 
End 
1993 

PACE ' 78 87 _ . 28 1 114 136 
Builders Square 144 144 — 22 1 165 188 
PayLess Drug Stores , 321 401 124 36 9 552 580 
Waldenbooks 1,268 1,275 — 16 31 1,260 1,247 
OfficeMax . — 79 41 , 61 2. 179 330 
The Sports Authority 19 36 — 20 — 56 81 
Borders — _= 22- 9 _= _31 51 

Total Specialty Retail 1,830 2,022 187 192 44 2,357 2,613 

Specialty Retail Selling 
Square Feet (Millions) _32 '_35 _45 
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A three-year summary of the specialty retail group’s 

sales and operating income follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

% Change 

1992 1991 

Sales ■ $11,254 $9,032 $7,179 24.6 25.8 

Operating income $ 254 $ 245. $’ 165 3.8 48.4 

Comparable Store 

Sales Increase 5.2% 9.0% 5.2% 

Capital Expenditures— 

Owned Property $ 325 $ 294 $ 179 

Specialty retail group sales increased 24.6% to . 

$11.3 billion in 1992 due to 192 new stores, 187 stores 

acquired through the expansion of three companies 

within existing lines.of business and a 5.2% comparable 

store sales increase. Operating income for the specialty 

retail group increased 3.8% from $245 million in 1991 to 

$254 million in 1992 due to new and acquired stores and 

improved operating leverage, partially offset by weak 

results at PACE. The specialty retail group represented 

29.8% of total 1992 consolidated sales and 14.0% 

of total 1992 consolidated operating income. 

Specialty retail group sales increased 25.8% to 

$9.0 billion in 1991 from $7.2 billion in 1990. The 1991 

sales increase was due to 239 new stores and a strong 

9.0% comparable store sales increase. Operating income 

for the specialty retail group increased 48,4% from 

$165 million in 1990 to $245 million in 1991 as a result of 

increased sales and greater operating leverage. Specialty 

retail group sales and operating income accounted for 

26.1% and 15.0% of total 1991 consolidated 

operations, respectively. 

Refer to Notes (C) and (L) of the accompanying Notes 

to Consolidated Financial Statements for information 

regarding the specialty retail group. 

PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. 

At January 27, 1993, PACE operated 114 membership 

warehouses in 29 states across the nation. PACE 

warehouses typically occupy 108,000 square feet and 

offer a variety of top quality brand-name merchandise 

and groceries. * 

PACE’s results of operations for the last three years 

follow: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

% Change 

1992 1991 

Sales $4,358 $3,646 $2,295 19.5 . 58.9 

Operating Income* $ , 3 $ 39 $ 12 ; - - 

Comparable Store 

Sales Increase 6.7% 16.5% n/a 

Net Assets $, 714 $ 588 $ 576 

Capital Expenditures— 

Owned Property $ no $ 91 $ 37 

Depreciation and 

Amortization* $ 36 $ 31 $ 18 

includes goodwill amortization of $12 million in both 1992 and 

1991, and $8 million in 1990. Total unafnortized goodwill at 

January 27, 199.3 was $406 million. 

PACE’s 1992 sales increase was due to new warehouse 

openings and a 6.7% comparable store sales gain. Sales 

did not meet expectations in 1992, particularly in the 

latter half of the year during which the comparable sales 

increased 2.7%. PACE, and the entire warehouse club 

industry, faced increased competition from both within 

the industry and from “category killers.” Operating 

income decreased in 1992 due to lower than expected 

sales volume, primarily in newer warehouses, and 

increased pre-opening expense, resulting from 

28 warehouse openings in 1992 versus 13 in 1991. 

The 1991 sales increase was a result of the inclusion of 

a full year of operations for the 17 Price Savers stores 

acquired in December 1990, a 16,5% comparable store 

sales increase and 13 new warehouses in operation. The 

comparable store sales increase was partially attribut¬ 

able to the successful implementation of fresh produce, 

meat and bakery programs in PACE warehouses. Oper¬ 

ating income increased dramatically in 1991 as a result 

of the Price Savers acquisition, the strong comparable 

store sales increase, improved expense leverage and the 

closing of four underperforming warehouses. 
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Builders Square, Inc. 

Builders Square operates 165 warehouse home-improve¬ 

ment centers in 29 states across the country. A typical 

new warehouse occupies 109,000 square feet and stocks 

a wide selection of everyday low-priced do-it-yourself 

merchandise displayed in a warehouse-style format. 

Builders Square’s results of operations for the last 

three years follow: 

{Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

% Change 

1992 1991 

Sales $2,419 $2,049 $1,890 18.1 .8.4 

Operating Income* $ 81 $ 74 $_58 8.6 27.2 

Comparable Store 

Sales Increase 8.5% 7.0% _3T>% 

Net Assets $ 470 $ 399 $ 457. 

Capital Expenditures— 

Owned'Property ■ $ 57 $ 45 $■ 21 

Depreciation and 

Amortization*. $ 30 $ 27 ; $ 27 

♦Includes intangible asset amortization of $1 million in 1992, 

$2 million in 1991 and $3 million in 1990. Total unamortized 

goodwill at January 27, 1993 was $27 million. 

The 1992 sales increase was due to 22 new stores and ah 

8.5% comparable store sales increase which resulted 

from a stronger everyday low-price position, an im¬ 

proved merchandise mix and in-stock position, and an 

emphasis on project selling. Operating income increased 

8.6% in 1992 due primarily to increased sales, well con¬ 

trolled costs and the prior year closing of 14 underper¬ 

forming stores, partially offset by a $10 million LIFO 

charge in 1992 versus a $2 million credit in .1991 and 

increased pre-opening expense. 

Sales improved in 1991 as compared to 1990 primarily 

due to the opening of 14 new warehouses and a 7.0% 

comparable store sales increase partially reflecting the 

success of a continuing move to everyday low pricing 

and an improved merchandise mix in the latter half of 

the year. This was partially offset by the closing of 14 

underperforming stores which were either too small or 

in poor locations. Operating income increased 27.2% in 

1991 due to increased sales, the closing of underachiev¬ 

ing stores and lower LIFO expense, partially offset by a 

lower gross margin as a result of a greater emphasis on 

everyday low pricing. 

Pay Less Drug Stores North west, Inc. 

Pay Less operates 552 drug stores in 12 western states. 

New drug stores occupy 23,000 to 27,000 square feet 

and offer a variety of merchandise centered around the 

traditional core departments of pharmacy, health and 

beauty aids and photo processing. 

On July 26,1992, PayLess acquired the assets of Pacific 

Enterprises’ 124 store Pay’n Save chain. The Pay’n Save 

locations complement existing PayLess locations 

and mark PayLess’ entry into Hawaii and Alaska. 

Conversion of these stores into PayLess drug stores 

has begun and will be completed during 1993. The 

transaction has been accounted for as a purchase. 

PayLess’ results of operations for the last three years 

follow: 

(NiUltons) 1992 1991 1990 

% Change 

1992 1991 

Sales $2,335 $1,892 $1,642 23.4 15.2 

Operating Income* $ 113 $ 90 $ 77 26.4 16.1 

Comparable Store 

Sales Increase 0.0% ' .2.7% 6.3% 

Net Assets $1,045 $ 753 $ 685 : 

Capital Expenditures— 

Owned Property $_77 $ 119 $_78 

Depreciation and 

Amortization* $ 49 $ 48 $_43 

♦Includes intangible asset amortization of $3 million in 1992 and 

$8 million in both 1991 and 1990. Total unamortized goodwill at 

January 27, 1993 was $101 million. 

The 1992 sales gain was due primarily to strong phar¬ 

macy sales, 36 new store openings, the July acquisition 

of 124 Pay’n Save units and a full year of sales for the 

52 Osco stores acquired in June 1991. Comparable store 

sales in 1992 were flat as strong pharmacy sales were 

offset by lower general-merchandise sales, attributed to 

increased competitive pressure, poor weather and a 

weak Pacific Northwest and California economy. 
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Operating income in 1992 increased due to improved 

sales, a lower LIFO charge and reduced intangible asset 

amortization, partially offset by a lower gross margin as 

a result of competitive pressure. 

Sales improved in 1991 as compared to 1990 primarily 

due to store openings, the acquisition of 52 Osco drug 

stores in June 1991 and strong pharmacy sales. The 1991 

comparable store sales increase was driven by increased 

pharmacy sales due in part to the addition of new 

third party provider plans. Operating income in 1991 

improved due to increased sales and lower advertising 

expense related to PayLess’ move to an everyday low 

pricing strategy. 

Walden Book Company; Inc. 

Waldenbooks is a major operator of retail book stores 

and operates 1,260 stores in 50 states. A typical store 

occupies 3,300 square feet in a regional or local 

shopping mall and offers a wide selection of books, 

magazines, and books on tape. Basset Book operations 

were transferred from Waldenbooks to Borders in the 

fourth quarter of 1992 and are not included in 

Waldenbooks’ results. 

Waldenbooks’ results of operations for the last three 

years follow: 

(Miltions) 1992 1991 1990 

% Change 
1992 1991 

Sales $1,146 $1,139 $1,064 .6 7.1 

Operating Income* i«
 |

 

\t
\ 

$_38 $ 29 13.3 28.5 

Comparable Store - 

Sales Increase 1.4% 5.8% 6.2% 

Net Assets $ 365 $ 437 $ 523 

Capital Expenditures— 

Owned Property $_20 $_20 .$ 37 

Depreciation and 

Amortization* $ 34 $ 33 $ 33 

““Includes goodwill amortization of $2 million in 1992, 1991 and 

1990. Total unamortized goodwill at January 27, 1993 was 

$74 million. 

Waldenbooks’ 1992 sales increase was due primarily to 

the success of the Preferred Reader program, which is 

designed to build customer loyalty by offering special 

discounts to members. The comparable store sales in¬ 

crease arose despite weak economic conditions, reduced 

mall traffic and increased superstore competition. 

Operating income increased in 1992 due to favorable 

merchandise margins and good expense control. 

Sales in 1991 increased due to a strong 5.8% comparable 

store sales increase, an improved selection of titles and a 

full year impact of the Preferred Reader program. Oper¬ 

ating income was higher in 1991 due to improved sales, 

higher gross margins and good expense control. 

OfficeMax, Inc. 

At January 27, 1993, OfficeMax operated 179 stores 

in 27 states. A typical store occupies 23,000 square feet 

and features over 6,000 office supply items, furniture, 

computers and electronics at everyday low prices. 

On June 30,1992, OfficeMax acquired the 41 store OW 

Office Warehouse, Inc., an office products superstore 

chain. OfficeMax successfully integrated the chain into 

its organization during 1992. The transaction was 

accounted for as a purchase. 

On November 21, 1991, Kmart Corporation acquired 

a 93% controlling interest in OfficeMax, Inc., a 

privately held office supply superstore chain headquar¬ 

tered in Cleveland, Ohio. Previously, Kmart held a 

21.6% equity interest in OfficeMax. Kmart has 

consolidated the results of OfficeMax operations from 

November 21, 1991. 

OfficeMax’ results of operations from the 

November 21, 1991 date of acquisition follow: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 

Sales $ .528 $ 65 

Operating Income* $_1 $_\_ 

Net Assets $ 263 $ 188 

Capital Expenditures—Owned Property -$ ; 21 ■ $_4 

Depreciation and Amortization* $_10 . $_1_ 

““Includes goodwill amortization of $4 million in 1992 and$l mil¬ 

lion in 1991. Total unamortized goodwill at January 27,1993 was 

$194 million. 
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The 1992 OfficeMax sales increase was due to the 

inclusion of a full year of operations and 102 new stores, 

including 41 OW Office Warehouse stores acquired on 

June 30, 1992. OfficeMax recorded $1 million operating 

income despite higher store opening costs resulting from 

an aggressive expansion program during the year. On 

a proforma basis, OfficeMax comparable store sales 

increased 28.5% in 1992. 

Two months of sales and operating income were 

included in the 1991 consolidated operations aqd 

amounted to $65 million and $1 million, respectively. , 

On a proforma basis, OfficeMax 1991 sales and oper- ■ 
ating loss for the year ended January 29,1992 were 

$245 million and $2 million, respectively. 

In March 1993, OfficeMax acquired BizMart, Inc., 

a wholly owned subsidiary of Intelligent Electronics, 

Inc. BizMart operates 105 office products superstores in 

22 states, primarily in the Southwest, West and Pacific 

Northwest. The acquisition will be accounted for as 

a purchase. 

The Sports Authority, Inc. 

The Sports Authority operates a 56 store chain of ■ 
42,500-square-foot sporting goods mega stores in.. 

14 states, offering a broad range of brand name sporting 

goods and apparel at everyday low prices. Headquar¬ 

tered in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, The Sports Authority 

was acquired’on March 2, 1990. 

The Sports Authority’s results of operations from the 

March 2, 1990 date of acquisition follow: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 . 1990 

% Change 

1992 1991 

Sales 

Operating 

$ 412 $ '.241 $ .105 70.8 — 

Income (Loss)* 

Comparable Store 

$ ; 10 $ 3 $_(3) 

Sales Increase 8.3% 15.3% n/a 

Net Assets 

Capital Expenditures— 

$ 139 $ 129 ‘ $ 93 

Owned Property 

Depreciation and 

$ 26 $ 16 $ 6 

Amortization* $_7 $_4 $_3 

♦Includes goodwill amortization of $2 million in 1992, 1991 and 

1990. Total unamortized goodwill at January 27, 1993 was 

$65 million. 

The 1992 sales gain was due to the addition of 20 new 

stores and a strong 8.3% comparable store sales increase 

which resulted from improved customer awareness and 

greater penetration into existing markets. During 1992, 

the focus of The Sports Authority expansion was on 

backfilling existing markets to better leverage expenses. 

This resulted in cannibalization of sales from existing 

stores. Excluding sales from cannibalized stores, com¬ 

parable store sales increased 11.4%. The increase in 1992 

operating income was a result of higher sales and in¬ 

creased gross margin which resulted from an improved 

sales mix and greater fixed expense leverage. 

-The 1991 sales gain was due to the inclusion of a full 

year of operations, 17 store openings and a strong 

15.3% comparable store sales increase. The improve- . 

ment in 1991 operating income resulted, from increased 

sales, improved overhead expense leverage, improved 

gross margins resulting primarily from increased buying 

leverage and a better sales mix. 

Borders, Inc. 

On October 30, 1992, Kmart Corporation acquired 

Borders, Inc., a book superstore chain headquartered in 

Ann Arhor, Michigan. Borders book stores feature over 

1.00,000 titles, a comfortable browsing atmosphere and 

a staff committed to quality customer service. Bordets’ 

new ’prototype stores occupy 30,000'square feet and 

offer both books and music. At January 27,1993, Bor¬ 

ders operated 31 stores in 18 states located primarily in 

the Midwest and Northeast. Kmart has consolidated 

Borders’ results of operations from the October 30, 1992 

date of acquisition. Sales and operating profit for the 

. three months ended January 27, 1993 were $56 million 

and $3 million, respectively. On a proforma basis, 

Borders.sales, excluding Basset Book, for the year 

ended January 27, 1993 were $116 million. Walden- 

books’ nine Basset Book stores were transferred to 

Borders in the fourth quarter of 1992. 

Licensee Operations and Equity Investments 

The company owns a 21.3% equity interest ih Coles 

Myer Ltd., Australia’s largest retailer, and a 49.0% 

equity interest in substantially all of the Meldisco 

subsidiaries of Melville Corporation, operator of the 

company’s domestic Kmart and Pay Less footwear 

departments. 
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In U.S. dollars, 1992 equity.in income of Coles Myer 

was $51 million, compared with $60 million in 1991 and 

$68 million in 1990. The 1992 Coles Myer equity income 

decline was a result of losses on the sale of certain New 

Zealand food operations and part of Sandhurst Dairies 

operations earlier in the year and the continued weak 

Australian economy. The 1991 decrease was due to the 

depressed Australian economy. 

Meldisco equity income in 1992 was $54 million, com¬ 

pared with $50 million and $46 million in 1991 and 1990, 

respectively. Both 1992 and 1991 Meldisco equity income 

increased due .to increased sales, combined with im¬ 

proved gross.profit margin as a result of lower purchas¬ 

ing costs and the merchandise mix. Refer to Note (G) of 

the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further results of the company’s 

equity investments. . . 

Recent Accounting Standards 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 106 “Employers’ 

Accounting for Post retirement Benefits Other Than 

Pensions” (FAS 106) in December 1990. This statement 

requires employers to accrue for future postretirement 

benefits, such as health care and life insurance, which 

are presently accounted for on a cash basis. In the first 

quarter of 1993, Kmart will record a non-cash, one-time 

charge as a result Of this accounting change of approxi¬ 

mately $50 to $7Q million net of applicable tax. On a 

subsequent prospective basis, the new rules will not have 

a material impact on earnings. Note (M) of the accom¬ 

panying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

contains additional information regarding FAS 106. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 109 “Accounting 

for Income Taxes” (FAS 109) was issued in February 

1992. The standard requires adjustment of deferred tax 

balances for enacted changes in statutory income tax 

rates. The company will adopt FAS 109 in the first 

quarter of 19931 It is anticipated that this accounting 

change will result in a non-cash, one-time credit to 

income of approximately $40 to $60 million. 

FAS 106 and FAS 109 are effective for fiscal years 

beginning after December 15,1992. 

In addition, Financial Accounting Standard No. 112 

“Employers’ Accounting for Post Employment Bene¬ 

fits” (FAS 112) was issued in November 1992. FAS 112 

is an extension of the concepts underlying FAS 106, 

requiring that benefits provided to terminated or laid- 

off employees be recorded on an accrual basis rather 

than a cash basis. The statement is effective for fiscal 

years beginning after December 15, 1993. Kmart does 

not expect the effects of this statement to be significant 

and will adopt FAS 112.in the First quarter of 1993. 
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Corporate Responsibility 

Contributions and Community Involvement 

Kmart Corporation funds charitable programs nation¬ 

wide that address specific issues affecting children, the 

family and education. 

In 1992, more than $19 million in contributions of cash 

and merchandise were made. United Way agencies in 

Kmart communities across the United States received 

more than $8 million from Kmart, its subsidiaries 

and associates. 

Hurricane Andrew relief for Florida and Louisiana 

was a corporate-wide activity. A cash donation to the 

American Red Cross led off the Kmart merchandise 

donations which included semi-trailers of bottled water, 

blankets and disposable diapers. A 50-truck caravan of 

merchandise, baby food and other necessities, contrib¬ 

uted by Kmart associates and customers through Good 

News Committee® efforts, aided the victims of this 

summer of ’92 disaster. 

In addition to reacting to relief efforts in 1992, Kmart’s 

Good News Committees® organized the following four 

national community relations programs. 

■ March of Dimes WalkAmerica—Kmart ranked the 

number one team for the seventh consecutive year. 

■ INVENT AMERICA!—Kmart continued its support 

of this nonprofit kindergarten through eighth grade 

education program and became the awards sponsor in 

1992. Stores organized presentations for their state and 

regional winners identified by INVENT AMERICA!. 

■ Thanksgiving Food Baskets—each store donated 

20 food baskets to local needy families within 

its community. 

■ Children’s Shopping Spree—Kmart stores hosted a 

special shopping spree for underprivileged children 

during the Christmas holiday season. 

More than 1,200 Kmart stores participated in The 

Giving Tree® program that provided 237,700 needy. 

children and/or seniors in nursing homes with a gift 

during the 1992 holiday season. 

Education 

In 1992, Chairman Joe Antonini led Michigan’s 

National Business Roundtable Task Force on Edu¬ 

cation, which commissioned a survey of education ex¬ 

cellence through the University of Michigan. As a result 

of this survey, a needs assessment for education reform 

was prepared and endorsed by Michigan Governor John 

Engler. This analysis will be used to implement educa¬ 

tion reform in Michigan. In addition, a pilot program 

using this analysis has been started at the local level in 

four Michigan school districts.. 

Kmart programs such as KEY Workforce 2000 with the 

University of Missouri-St. Louis continued. Kmart’s 

partnership in the Cadillac Middle School under 

the Detroit Compact School Program continues 

to show progress. 

In 1992, Joe Antonini dedicated the International 

Center for Retailing and Marketing at the Hebrew 

University in Jerusalem, Israel. 

Environment 

Kmart is committed to providing a healthier environ¬ 

ment for America and encourages store associates to 

participate in programs addressing environmental con¬ 

cerns. In 1992, Keep America Beautiful, Inc. recognized 

Kmart’s environmental initiatives with the “Vision for. 

America” award. Kmart focused on environmental 

education in partnership with suppliers and other 

nonprofit organizations in order to help our customers 

make smart shopping decisions. 

An environmental policy statement is available upon 

request by writing Kmart Headquarters, Corporate 

Communications Department. 

Minority Affairs 

. Minority vendors have been important to Kmart for 

many years. In 1992, Kmart purchased more than 

$655 million in goods and services from minority- 

owned firms. Kmart continues to seek out new 

minority vendors and to develop programs to strengthen 

relationships with current minority suppliers. 
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Report by Management 

Kmart Responsibility for Financial Statements 

Kmart Corporation management is responsible for the 
integrity of the information and representations cort- . 
tained in its interim and annual financial statements. 
This responsibility includes making informed estimates 
and judgments in selecting the appropriate accounting 
principles. Management believes the financial state¬ 
ments conform with generally accepted accounting 
principles applied on a consistent basis. 

To assist management in fulfilling these obligations, 
the company utilizes several tools, which include 
the following: 

The company maintains a system of internal accounting 
controls to provide for the integrity of information 
for purposes of preparing financial statements and to 
assure that assets are properly accounted for and safe¬ 
guarded. This concept of reasonable assurance is based 
on the recognition that the cost of the system is related 
to the benefits to be derived and modified for changing 
conditions. Management believes its system provides 
reasonable assurance of this appropriate balance. 

As part of the internal control system, the company 
has a policy of Standards of Business Conduct and 
Management Integrity Statements. All officers and 
key employees periodically submit a signed statement 
regarding compliance with these policies. 

An Internal Audit Department is maintained to 
evaluate, test and report on the application of internal 
accounting controls in conformity with standards of the 
practice of internal auditing. 

The Board of Directors appoints the independent ac¬ 
countants to perform an examination of the company’s 
financial statements. This examination includes, among 
other things, a review of the system of internal controls 
as required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, 
consisting solely of outside directors, meets regularly 
with management, internal auditors and the indepen¬ 
dent accountants to assure that each is carrying out its 
responsibilities. The internal auditors and independent 
accountants both have full and free access to the 
Audit Committee, with and without the presence 
of management. 

J. E. Antonini 
Chairman of the Board, President 
and Chief Executive Officer 

T. E Murasky 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors 
of Kmart Corporation 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets and the related consolidated statements of 
income, shareholders’ equity and of cash flows present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Kmart Corporation and its subsidiaries at January 27, 
1993 and January 29, 1992, and the results of their oper¬ 
ations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended January 27, 1993, in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. These finan¬ 
cial statements are the responsibility of the company’s 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards which 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion 
expressed above. 

3^ -e_SL_ 

200 Renaissance Center 
Detroit, Michigan 48243 
March 1,1993 
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Financial Statements 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Fiscal Year Ended 

(Millions, except per-share data) 

January 27, 

1993 

January 29, 

1992 

January 30, 

1991 

Sales • $37,724 $34,580 $32,070 

Licensee fees and rental income 295 279 269 

Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 105 110 113 

38,124 34,969 32,452 

Cost of merchandise sold (includes, buying and occupancy costs) 28,485 25,930 23,895 

Selling, general and administrative expenses. 7,284 6,769 6,435 

Advertising 497 568 577 

Interest expense: 

Debt—net 244 219 222 

Capital lease obligations 188 182 177 

36,698 33,668 31,306 

Income before income taxes 1,426 1,301 1,146 

Income taxes ■ r'485 442' 390 

Net income $ 941 $ 859 $ 756 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share $ 2.06 $ 2.02 $ 1.89 

Weighted average shares 457.8 426.2 400.2 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

($ Millions) January 27,1993 January 29,1992 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash (includes temporary investments of $260 and $309, respectively) $ 611 $ 565 

Merchandise inventories 8,752 ' 7,546 

Accounts receivable and other current assets U46 879 

Total current assets 10,509 8,990 

Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 597 600 

Property and Equipment—net —-6,405 5,265 

Other Assets and Deferred Charges 381 341 

Goodwill—net 1,039 803 

$18,931 $15,999 

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 

Current Liabilities: 

Long-term debt due within one year $ 117 $ 39 

Notes payable 590 — 

Accounts payable—trade 2,959 • 2,722 

Accrued payrolls and other liabilities 1,215 1,014 

Taxes other than income taxes 368 322 

Income taxes . 246 211 

Total current liabilities. 5,495 4,308 

Capital Lease Obligations 1,698 1,638 

Long-Term Debt 3,237 •2,287. 

Other Long-Term Liabilities (includes restructuring obligations) 697 641 

Deferred Income Taxes 268 234 

Shareholders’ Equity: 

Preferred stock, 10,000,000 shares authorized; - 

Series A, 5,750,000 shares issued 986 986 

Series B, 784,938 shares issued • 157 — 

Common stock, 1,500,000,000 shares authorized; shares 

issued 415,640,206 and 413,072,028, respectively 416 413 

Capital in excess of par value 506 453 

Performance restricted stock deferred compensation (2) (2) 

Retained earnings 5,700 5,214 

Treasury shares (122) (130) 

Foreign currency translation adjustment (105) (43) 

Total shareholders’ equity 7,536 6,891 

$18,931 $15,999 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(Millions) . - 

Fiscal Year Ended 

January 27, January 29, 

1993 1992 

January 30, 

1991 

Cash Provided by (Used for): 

Operations 

Net income $ 941 $ 859 $ 756- 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to operating cash flows: 

Depreciation and amortization 685 589 531 

Restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges (27) (38) (70) 

Deferred income taxes 153 116 159 

Undistributed equity income (11) (26) (37) 

Increase (decrease) in other long-term, liabilities 63 31 (ID 
Other—net 60 81 (89) 

Cash provided by (used for) current assets and current liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in inventories (956) (620) 92 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 167 371 (66) 

Other—net (223) (148) (111) 

Net cash provided by operations 852 1,215 1,154 

Investing, 

Capital expenditures—owned property (1,435) (1,329) (814) 

Acquisitions (372) ’ 015) (255) 

Proceeds' from the sale of assets 25 70 53 

Other—net (50) (39) (56) 

Net cash used for investing (1,832) (1,413) (1,072) 

Financing 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and notes payable 1,602 811 289 

Reduction in long-term debt and notes payable (80) (896) (8) 

Reduction in capital lease obligations .. (113) (110) (102) 

Issuance of common stock , 57 67 4 

Issuance of $3.41 Depositary Shares (each representing 

!4 share Series A conversion preferred) 986 

Reissuance of treasury shares 8 2 — 

Dividends paid (448) (375) (340) 

Net cash provided by (used for).financing 1,026 485 (157) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents 46 287 (75) 

Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year 565 -278 353 

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year $ 611 $ ’ 565 $ 278 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity 

($ Millions) 

Series A 

Conversion 

Preferred 

Stock 

Series B' 

Convertible 

Preferred 

Stock 

Common 

Stock 

Capital 

In Excess 

of Par 

Value 

Performance 

Restricted 

Stock 

Deferred 

Compensation 

Retained 

Earnings 

Treasury 

Shares 

Foreign 

Currency 

Translation, 

Adjustment 

Total 

Share¬ 

holders’ 

Equity 

Balance at January 31, 1990 

Net income for the year 
Cash dividends declared, 

common, $!86 per share 

$ - $ — $205 $602 S(l) $4,341 

756 

■ (344) 

$(146) $ (29) $4,972 

756 

(344) 
Common issued under 

stock option plans 5 5 
Common issued 

under performance 
restricted stock plan 1 (l) — 

Treasury shares 
retired at cost (15) • 15 — 

Foreign currency * 
translation adjustment______L_(5)_(5) 

Balance at January 30,1991 - — ■ 205 593 (2) 4,753 (131) (34) 5,384 

Net income for the year 
Cash dividends declared, 

859 859 

common, $.88 per share 
Cash dividends declared, 

(354) (354) 

$3.41,Depositary Share- 
(lA share Series A 
conversion preferred), 
$1.91 per share ' (44) (44) 

$3.41 Depositary 
Shares issued 

Common issued under 
986 

* 
986 

stock option plaris 
Common issued under 

2 62 64 

performance restricted 
stock plan 2 2 ' 

Treasury shares reissued 
to the Employee Savings Plan 2 1 3 

Two-for-one stock split 
Foreign currency 

206 . (206) ■ — 

translation adjustment (9) (9) 

Balance at January 29,1992 986 — 413 453 (2) 5,214 (130) . (43) 6,891 

Net income for the year 
Cash dividends declared, 

941 941 

common,' $.92 per share 
Cash dividends declared. 

(374) ■ (374) 

$3.41 Depositary Share, 
$3.41 per share ■ (78) (78) 

Cash dividends declared. 
Series B convertible 
preferred, $4.31 per share (3) (3) 

Series B convertible 
preferred stock issued 

Common issued under 
157 .157 

stock option plans 
Common issued under 

3 ■ 42 45 

performance restricted 
stock plan 1 1 

Treasury shares reissued 
to the Employee Savings Plan 

Foreign currency 
10 8 18 

translation adjustment (62) (62) 

Balance at January 27, 1993 $986 $157 $416 . $506 $(2) . $5,700 $(122) $(105) . $7,536 

Common stock, authorized 1,500,000,000 shares, $1 par value. Preferred stock, authorized 10,000,000 shares, no par value. 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

34 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Fiscal Year: The company’s fiscal years end on the last 

Wednesday in January. Fiscal years 1992, 1991 and 1990 

each consisted of 52 week's and ended on January 27, 

1993, January 29, 1992 and January 30, 1991, 

respectively. 

Basis of Consolidation: The company includes all 

majority owned subsidiaries in the consolidated 

financial statements. Investments in affiliated retail 

companies owned 20% or Jnore are accounted for by 

the equity method using their December financial, 

statements. Intercompany transactions and accounts 

have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Earnings Per Common and Common Equivalent Share: 

The company computes earnings per common and 

common equivalent share by dividing net income by the 

weighted average number of shares of common stock 

and dilutive.common stock equivalents outstanding 

during each year. In determining, the weighted average 

number of fully diluted common shares outstanding, 

the Series A conversion preferred stock and Series B 

convertible preferred stock have been treated as 
common stock. 

Foreign Operations: Foreign currency assets and 

liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange 

rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of oper¬ 

ations are translated at average exchange rates during 

the, period for revenues and expenses. Translation gains 

and losses resulting from fluctuations in the exchange 

rates are accumulated as a separate component of 

shareholders’ equity. 

Inventories: Merchandise-inventories are valued at 

the lower of cost or market, primarily using the retail 

method, on the last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis for 

substantially all domestic inventories and the first-in, 

first-out basis for the remainder. 

Property Owned and Depreciation: Land, buildings, 

leasehold improvements and equipment are recorded 

at cost* including a provision for capitalized interest. 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives 

of related assets on the straight-line method for finan- . 

cial statement purposes and on accelerated methods for 

income tax purposes. Most store properties are leased 

and improvements are amortized over the term of the 

lease but not more than 25 years.. Other annual rates 

used in computing depreciation for financial statement 

purposes are 2% to 4% for buildings, 10% to 14% 

for store fixtures and 5% to 33% for other fixtures 

and equipment. . 

Expenditures for owned properties, primarily self- 

developed locations, which the company intends to sell 

and lease-back within one year are included in accounts 

receivable and other current assets. 

Goodwill: Excess of cost over the net assets of acquired 

companies is amortized using the straight-line method 

over 40 years. 

Financial Instruments: With the exception of long-term 

debt, shareholders’ equity and equity investments, the 

company records all financial instruments, including 

accounts receivable, accounts payable and marketable 

securities at, or approximating, market value. 

Licensee Sales: The company’s policy is to exclude sales 

of licensed departments from total sales. Sales from 

licensed departments are primarily comprised of sales 

from the Meldisco subsidiaries of Melville Corporation. 

Pre-Opening and Closing Costs: Costs associated with 

the opening of a new store are expensed during the first 

full month of operations. When the decision to close a 

retail unit is made, the company provides for the future 

net lease obligation, nonrecoverable investment in fixed 

assets, other expenses directly related to discontinuance 

of operations and estimated operating loss through the 

expected closing dates. 

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provided on 

nonpermanent differences between financial statement 

and taxable income. The company accrues appropriate 

US’ andforeign taxes payable on all of the earnings of 

subsidiaries and affiliates, except with respect to earn¬ 

ings that are intended to be permanently reinvested, or 

are expected to be distributed free of additional tax by 

operation of relevant statutes currently in effect and by 

utilization of available tax credits and deductions. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

B—Subsequent Events 

In March 1993, the company and El Puerto de 

Liverpool S.A. de C.V., a major retail developer and 

owner of 17 full-line department stores in Mexico, 

announced their intent to form a joint venture company 

based on an equal investment by each company. Subject 

to the execution of a definitive agreement by the parties, 

the joint venture will be formed to build and operate 

combination grocery and general merchandise stores in 

Mexico that are patterned after Super Kmart Center 

prototypes in the United States. 

In March 1993, OfficeMax, Inc. acquired BizMart, Inc., 

a subsidiary of Intelligent Electronics, Inc. for 

C—Acquisitions and Dispositions  

In October 1992, the company acquired Borders, Inc. 

in a stock-for-stock exchange in which Kmart issued ,, 

784,938 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock in 

exchange for all outstanding Borders shares. Borders is 

headquartered in Ann Arbor, Michigan and operates a 

chain of 31 book superstores in the Midwest and North¬ 

east which emphasize customer service and feature over 

100,000 titles per store. Excess of cost over the fair value 

of the assets acquired totaled $172 million. 

In July 1992, Pay Less Drug Stores Northwest, Inc. 

acquired the assets, of Pacific Enterprises’ 124 unit 

Pay’n Save Drug Stores, Inc. chain. Pay’n Save drug 

stores are located in Washington, Hawaii, Alaska and 

Idaho and are being converted to PayLess drug stores 

during 1992 and 1993. Excess of cost over the fair value 

of the assets acquired totaled $24 million.. 

In June 1992, OfficeMax, Inc. completed its acquisition 

of OW Office Warehouse, Inc., an office products 

superstore chain. OfficeMax has integrated 41 OW 

Office Warehouse stores into its organization. Excess 

of cost over the fair value of the assets acquired totaled 

$66 million. - 

In May 1992, the company acquired three companies 

which operate a total of 13 department stores located in 

Slovakia and the Czech Republic. The acquisition 

marks the company’s initial entry into the Central 

European retail market. No goodwill resulted from 

the transaction. 

Net cash used in 1992 for the acquisition of Pay’n Save 

assets, OW Office Warehouse and the 13 department 

stores located in Slovakia and the Czech Republic 

totaled $372 million. 

$264 million. BizMart is headquartered in Dallas, 

Texas and operates 105 office products superstores. 

The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase 

and, accordingly, the results of operations will be 

consolidated from the date of acquisition. 

On February 1,1993, the company issued $300 million 

7.95% debentures due February 1, 2023, the proceeds 

of which were used primarily for the BizMart 

acquisition. These debentures are not redeemable 
prior to maturity. 

In November 1991, the company acquired the remaining 

outstanding shares of OfficeMax, Inc. for $115 million 

in cash, except for7% of the shares which are owned by 

senior management of OfficeMax. OfficeMax, in which 

Kmart previously had a 21.6% equity interest, is a 

Cleveland-based office supply superstore chain- Excess 

of cost over the fair value of assets acquired totaled 

$135 million. Kmart’s investment in OfficeMax from 

November 1990 through acquisition of a controlling 

interest in November 1991 was accounted for under the 

equity method, and resulted in $22 million excess of 

cost over Kmart’s share of the fair value of OfficeMax 

net assets. In 1990, Kmart sold five Office Square 

concept stores to OfficeMax. The financial effects of 

the Office Square sale were not material. 

In December 1990, PACE Membership Warehouse, 

Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Kmart Corporation, 

acquired Price Savers Wholesale, Inc. At the date of 
acquisition, Price Savers operated 17 membership ware-, 

house clubs in five western states. Excess of cost over 

the fair value of the assets acquired totaled $166 million. 

In March 1990, the company acquired The Sports 

Authority, Inc., headquartered in Fort Lauderdale, 

Florida. The Sports Authority operates a chain of sport¬ 

ing goods mega stores offering a broad range of brand 

name sporting goods and apparel at everyday low 

prices. Excess of cost over the fair value of assets 

acquired totaled $70 million. 

Net cash used in 1990 for the acquisition of Price Savers 

and The Sports Authority and the purchase of a 

21.6% interest in OfficeMax totaled $255 million. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

With the exception of the original OfficeMax equity, 

purchase, the above acquisitions have been accounted 

for as purchases and, accordingly, the results of opera¬ 

tions have been consolidated from their respective dates 

of acquisition. 

In October 1990, Kmart Canada Limited sold its 

Bargain Harold’s Discount Limited subsidiary to 

D—Supplemental Cash Flow Information  

Quebec Equity Capital at book value. Under the terms 

of the sale, Kmart Canada Limited guaranteed certain 

Bargain Harold’s store leases and a revolving credit 

agreement. During 1992, Bargain Harold’s was placed 

in bankruptcy, in 1992, Kmart Corporation recorded a 

net of tax, one-time charge of $12 million related to its 

guarantee of certain Bargain Harold’s leases. 

The company incurred capital lease obligations to 

obtain store facilities and equipment of $185 million, 

$157 million and $160 million in 1992, 1991 and 1990, 

respectively. Noncash charges related to store restruc¬ 

turing were $21 million, $63 million and $57 million 

in 1992,1991 and 1990, respectively. Kmart acquired 

Borders, Inc. in a stock-for-stock transaction in 1992. 

These noncash transactions have been excluded from 

the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

The company considers cash on hand in stores, deposits 

in banks, certificates of deposit and short-term market¬ 

able securities with maturities of 90 days or less as cash 

and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement 

of cash flows. The effect of changes in foreign exchange 

rates on cash balances is not material.' 

Cash’paid for interest and income taxes follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

Interest (net of amounts capitalized) $ 444 $ 411 $ 407 

Income taxes $ 320 $ 260 $ 337 

E—Merchandise, Inventories 

For LIFO purposes, the company uses internal price indices to measure inflation in merchandise inventories. 

A summary of inventories, at lower of cost or market, by method of pricing and the excess of current cost over stated 

LIFO value due to inflation follows: 

(Millions) January 27,1993 January 29,1992 

Last-in, first-out $ 7,456 $‘6,558 

First-in, first-out 1,296 988 

Total inventories $ 8/752 $ 7,546 

Excess of current cost over stated LIFO value $ 1,030 . $ 1,060 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

F—Property and Equipment_ 

The; components of property and equipment are: 

(Millionsj January 27,1993 January 29,1992 
Property owned: 

Land $ 204 $ 171 
Buildings 657 485 
Leasehold improvements 1,706 1,349 
Furniture and fixtures 5,516 4,726 
Construction in progress 85 116 

Property under capital leases 2,861 2,712 

Less-accumulated depreciation and amortization: 
11,029 9,559 

Property owned (3,206) (2,949] 
Property under capital leases (1,418) (1,345) 

Total $ 6,405 $ 5,265 

Accumulated depreciation for owned property includes $99 million and $145 million of the Kmart restructuring 

provision as of January 27,1993 and Jantiary 29, 1992, respectively. 

G~Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 

Meldisco Subsidiaries of Melville Corporation 

All U.S. Kmart footwear departments are operated 

under license agreements with the Meldisco subsidiaries 

of Melville Corporation, substantially all of which 

are 49% owned by the company and 51% owned by. 

Melville. Meldisco also operates footwear departments 

in PayLess drug stores under a license agreement. 

Fees and income earned under the license agreements in 

1992,1991 and 1990 of $200 million, $192 million and 

$182 million, respectively, are included in licensee fees 

and rental income. The company’s equity in the income 

of footwear departments in Kmart stores and dividends 

received were as follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 
Equity in income $ 54 $ 50 $ 46 

Dividends $ 59 $ ' 51 $ 44 

Meldisco companies’ summarized financial information follows: 

(Millions) Year Ended December 31,1992 1991 1990 
Net sales $ 1,164 $ 1,145 . $ 1,127 

Gross profit ' $ 525 $ 505 $ 483 

Net income $ 111 $ 104 . $ 95 

Inventory $ 129 $ 132. $ 143 
Other current assets 123 131 112 
Noncurrent assets 2 — 1 

Total assets 254 263 256 
Current liabilities 47 46 38 

Net assets $  207 -■ $ 217 $_218 

Equity of Kmart Corporation $ 101 $ 106 . $ 105 
- 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

The company has a 21.3% equity interest in Coles Myer 

Ltd., the largest retailer in Australia. 

Income earned under a license agreement with 

Coles Myer of $3 million in 1992, 1991 and 1990 is 

included in licensee fees and rental income. Further 

information regarding the company’s investment in 

Coles Myer follows: 

(Millions US. $) 1992 1991 1990 

Equity in income $_51 $_60 $ 68 

Dividends $ . 34 $ 33 ■$_33 

Equity of Kmart Corporation $ 496 $ 488 $ 460 

Market value of Coles Myer common stock $ 912 $ 1,082 $ 712 

The cumulative effect of translating the company’s U.S. dollars were .7367 in 1992, .7776 in 1991 and .7806 

equity in the investment in Coles Myer was a reduction in 1990. 

of $90 million, $45 million and $38 million, respectively, 
Summarized financial information adjusted for con¬ 

as of January 27, 1993, January 29, 1992 and January 
formity with U.S. generally accepted accounting princi¬ 

30, 1991. The average exchange rates from Australian to 
ples for Coles Myer’s most recent fiscal years follows: 

(Millions u.S. S) Fiscal Year Ended July 26,1992 July 28,1991 July 25,1990 

Net sales $11,634 $11,699 $11,347 

Net income $ 137 $ 254 $ 251 

Current assets $ 1,927. $ 1,776 $ 1,704 

Noncurrent assets 2,123 2,435 2,413 

Total assets $ 4,050 $ 4,211 .$ 4,117 

Current liabilities ■ $ 1,327 $ 1,327 $ 1,385 

Noncurrent liabilities 663 1,019 1,005 

Equity 2,060 1,865 1,727 

Total liabilities and equity $ 4,050 $ 4,211 ‘ $ 4,117 

Unremitted earnings of unconsolidated affiliates included in consolidated retained earnings were $346 million, 

'$336 million and $309 million at January 27,. 1993, January 29, 1992 and January 30, 1991, respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

H—Income Taxes 

Components of income before income taxes follow: , ' 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

u.s. $ 1,360 $ 1,231 $ 1,057 

Foreign 66 70 89 

Total $ 1,426 .$ 1,301 $ 1,146 

The provision for income taxes consists of: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

Current: 

Federal $ 248 $ 272 $ 154 

State and local 65 .53 58 

Foreign 15 8 24 

Deferred: 

Restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges 32 54 37 

Excess of tax over book depreciation.. 77 40 21 

LIFO inventory 38 39 119 

Other . 10 (24) (23) 

Total income taxes $_ 485 $ 442 390 

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the company’s effective tax rate follows: 

($ Millions) . 1992 1991 1990 1992 1991 1990 

Federal statutory rate $485. $442 $390 34.0% 34.0% 34.00; 

State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 43 35 38 3.0 2.7 * 3.3 

Tax credits (7>: (8) (8) (.5) (-6) (-7) 
Equity in income of affiliated retail 

companies subject to lower tax rates (23) (32) (33) (1.6) (2-5) (2,9) 

Other (13) _5 _3 (.9) _A _3 

Total income taxes $485 $442' $390 34.0% 34.0% 34.09 

The amounts shown on the consolidated balance sheets 

for deferred income taxes result principally from the 

difference between financial statement $nd income tax 

depreciation and cost of merchandise sold, reduced by 

the 1989 Kmart store restructuring provision. 

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries totaled 

$195 million, $188 million and $182 million at* 

January 27, 1993, January 29, 1992 and January 30, 

1991, respectively. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 109 “Accounting 

for Income Taxes” (FAS 109) was issued in February 

1992. The standard requires adjustment of deferred tax 

liabilities to reflect enacted changes in the statutory 

federal income tax rate and is effective for fiscal years 

beginning after December 15,1992. The company will 

adopt FAS 109 as the cumulative effect of an accounting 

change in the first quarter of 1993. It is anticipated that 

this accounting change will result in a one-time credit to 

income of $40 to $60 million. 
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I—Current Notes Payabley Lines of Credit and Other 

At January 27, 1993, notes payable of $590 million were 

comprised entirely of the company’s commercial paper. 

The company had no outstanding notes payable on 

January 29,1992. The weighted average interest rate 

on short-term borrowings outstanding on 

January 27, 1993 was 3.2%. 

At January 27, 1993, the company had bank lines of 

credit aggregating $1,339 million which provide for 

interest rates not exceeding the “prime” lending rate on 

any borrowings thereunder. In support of certain lines 

of credit, it is expected that compensating balances will 

be maintained on deposit with the banks, which will 

average 10% of the line to the extent that it is not in use 

and an additional 10% on the portion in use, whereas 

other lines require fees in lieu of compensating bal¬ 

ances. The company is free to withdraw the entire 

balance in its accounts at any time. 

The company has entered into revolving credit 

agreements with various banks in the aggregate amount 

of $770 million as of January 27,1993, and $700 million 

as of January 29, 1992. The agreements provide for 

borrowings at an interest rate based on the prime rate, 

“CD-based rate” or “LIBOR-based rate” at the com¬ 

pany’s election. As of January 27, 1993, the company 

had no outstanding borrowings under these agreements. 

The revolving credit agreements contain certain restric¬ 

tive provisions regarding the maintenance of net worth, 

working capital, coverage ratios and payment of 

cash dividends. At January 27, 1993, $4,237 million 

of consolidated retained earnings were free of 

such restrictions. 

At January 27,1993, the company had an interest rate 

swap agreement outstanding with a commercial bank. 

The agreement will expire in January 1995. Under this 

agreement, the company pays interest on a $50 million 

notional principal amount based on a fixed rate. The 

variable rate is a calculated bond equivalent rate based 

on the 30-day commercial paper rate. The company’s 

effective interest rate on this agreement during 1992 

was 7.9%. The company has limited exposure to credit 

loss for the differential between interest rates in the 

event of nonperformance by the other parties. 

At January 27,1993, the company had a $200 million 

line of credit and had guaranteed an additional 

$200 million line of credit, the proceeds of which will be 

used by certain of the company’s real estate develop¬ 

ment joint ventures. The agreement provides for interest 

on the borrowings calculated on a “LIBOR-based rate.” 

In addition, the company guaranteed a related interest 

rate swap with a notional principal amount of $50 mil¬ 

lion. As of January 27,1993, there was $130 million of 

borrowings outstanding under these agreements. *- 

Kmart has also entered into certain real estate arrange¬ 

ments whereby the company is obligated to purchase 

completed projects if alternate financing is not available 

to the developer. The company’s aggregate guarantees 

under these arrangements, and other lease guarantees 

for certain facilities previously sold, were $494 million 

at January 27,1993. 

The company and Coles Myer have guaranteed 

indebtedness related to certain properties in Australia 

on a joint and several basis. Coles Myer subsequently 

indemnified Kmart Corporation from any liability 

incurred pursuant to the Kmart guarantees. As of 

January 27,1993, the amount guaranteed was $20 million. 

The company has guaranteed indebtedness related to 

certain of its leased properties financed by industrial 

revenue bonds. At January 27; 1993, the total amount 

of such guaranteed indebtedness was $292 million, of 

which $94 million was included in capital lease obliga¬ 

tions. The agreements will expire during fiscal years 

2004 to 2009. The company’s exposure to credit loss, in 

the event of nonperformance by the other parties to the 

agreements, is $198 million. However, no concentration 

of credit risk exists and the company does not anticipate 

nonperformance by the other parties. 
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J—Long-Term Debt.  

The company’s long-term debt, net of unamortized discount, is comprised of the following: 

(Millions) January 27,1993 January 29,1992 

8 Vs % debentures due 2017 $ 291 '' $ 291 

10 !/2% debentures due 2017 . 200 200 

8 Vs % debentures due 1997 199 199 

12 Vs % notes due 1995 150 150 

8 Vs % notes due 2006 199 199 

814 %. notes due 2022 99 99 

12 ‘/2% debentures due 2005 , .100 100 

8 Vs % debentures due 2022 99 ■— 

7 3A % debentures due 2012 198 — 

Medium-term notes due 1993 through 2020 

(8.41% weighted average interest rate) 835 665 

Notes payable 300 — 

Mortgages 522 316 

Other 162 107 

Total 3,354 2,326 

Portion due within one year 117 39 

Long-term debt $ 3,237 $ 2,287 

During fiscal 1992, the company issued mortgage notes 

payable of $211 million. The notes bear a weighted aver¬ 

age interest rate of 8.41%. For most of these mortgage 

notes, interest is payable semiannually, and principal is 

payable annually through the year 2022. The notes are 

secured by various owned properties. 

In October 1992, the company issued $200 million 

73/4% debentures due October 1, 2012. The debentures 

are not redeemable prior to maturity. In July 1992, the 

company issued $100 million 834% debentures due 

July 1, 2022. The debentures are not redeemable prior 

to July 1, 2002. On or after that date, the debentures 

are redeemable in whole or in part, at any time at the 

option of the company, at prices, declining from 103.9% 

to 100% of the principal amount. At January 27,1993, 

the company’s revolving credit agreements supported 

$300 million of commercial paper which has been 

classified as long-term debt. Amounts classified as 

long-term debt are based on the company’s intention 

and ability to maintain at least that amount of similar 

debt for a minimum of one year. 

In January 1992, the company issued mortgage notes 

payable of $71 million. The notes bear an interest rate 

of 9.06%. PayLess Drug Stores Northwest, Inc. issued 

mortgage notes payable of $49 million in 1991 with a 

weighted average interest rate of 8.92%. Interest and 

principal on these mortgage notes are payable through 

monthly installments through the year 2012 and are 

secured by various owned properties. 

In December 1991, the company issued $200 million 

8 Vs % notes due December 1, 2006. In January 1992, 

the company issued $100 million 8 lA % notes due 

January 1, 2022. The notes are not redeemable prior 

to maturity. 

During 1991, the company issued $400 million of 

medium-term notes with a weighted average interest 

rate of 8.36% with maturing dates from three 

to 29 years. 

Principal payments due on long-term debt for the five 

years subsequent to 1992, in millions, are: 1993—$117; 

1994—$133; 1995—$251; 1996^$217; 1997—$163, 

During 1992, the company issued $200 million of 

medium-term notes with a weighted average interest 

rate of 7.38% with maturity dates from seven to 

12 years. 
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Based on the quoted market prices for the same, or 

similar issues, or on the current rates offered to the 

company for debt of the same remaining maturities, 

the fair value of long-term debt was $3,656 million 

and $2,526 million at January 27,1993 and 

January 29, 1992, respectively. 
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K—Leases 

Description of Leasing Arrangements: The company Certain leases provide for additional rental payments 

conducts operations primarily in leased facilities. Kmart based on a percent of sales in excess of a specified base. 

store leases are generally for terms of 25 years with mul- Also, certain leases provide for the payment by the 

tiple five-year renewal options which allow the company lessee of executory costs (taxes, maintenance and. 

the option to extend the life of the lease up to 50 years ■ insurance). Some selling space has been sublet to other 

beyond the initial noncancellable term. Substantially all retailers in certain of the company’s leased facilities. 

specialty,retail units are leased, generally for terms vary¬ 

ing from five to 25 years with varying renewal options. 
Lease Commitments: Future minimum lease payments 

with respect to capital and operating leases follow: 

(Millions) Minimum Lease Payments Capital Operating 

Fiscal,Year: 

1993 $ 391 $ 719 

1994 379 694 

1995 371 665 

1996 366 630 

1997 355 585 

Later years , 3,256 5,764 

Total minimum lease payments 5,118 9,057 

Less-minimum sublease,rental income — (223) 

Net minimum lease payments 5,118 8,834 

Less: 

Estimated executory costs (1,547) (828) 

Amount representing interest (1,760) (4,068) 

1,811 3,938 

Portion due within one year 113 . 255 

Long-term lease obligations $ 1,698, $ 3,683 

Rental Expense: A summary of operating lease rental expense and short-term rentals follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

Minimum rentals ' $ 789 $ 651 -$ 556 

Percentage rentals , 53 57 58 

Less-sublease rentals (77) (67) (58) 

Total $ 165 $_641 $ 556 

43 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Reconciliation of Capital Lease Information: The impact of recording amortization and interest expense versus rent 
expense on capital leases follows: 

(Millions) ■ ' 1992 1991 1990 
Amortization of capital lease property $ 114 $ 110 $ 105 
Interest expense related to obligations under capital leases 188 .182 176 

Amounts charged to earnings 302 292 281 
Related minimum lease payments net of executory costs (297) (285) (272) 

Excess of amounts charged over related minimum lease payments ■ $ 5 $_7 $_9 

Related minimum lease payments above exclude executory costs for 1992, 1991 and 1990 in the amounts of $96 million, 
$92 million and $88 million, respectively. 

L—Business Group Information 

The dominant portion of the company’s business is 
general-merchandise retailing through the operation of a 
chain of Kmart discount department stores . Specialty 
retail operations at January 27,1993, include PACE, 

Builders Square, PayLess Drug Stores, Waldenbooks, 
The Sports Authority, OfficeMax and Borders. Business 
group information follows: 

(Millions) 1992 1991 1990 
Sales . 

General merchandise $26,470 $25,548 ■ $24,891 
Specialty retail 11,254 9,032 7,179 

Total 37,724 34,580 ■ 32,070 
Licensee fees and other income 

' General merchandise 278 266 257 
Specialty retail 17 13 12 

Total 295 279 269 
Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 105 MO 113, 

Total revenues from operations $38,124 $34,969 $32,452 
Operating income — — — 

General merchandise $ 1,557 $ 1,390 $ 1,299 
Specialty retail .254 . 245 165 

: Total 1,811 1,635 1,464 
Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 105 110 113 
Interest expense (432) (401) (399) 
Corporate expense (58) (43) (32) 

income before income taxes $ 1,426 $ 1,301 $ 1,146 

Identifiable assets 
General merchandise $12,862 $11,240 $ 9,640 
Specialty retail 5,404 4,090 3,581 

Total 18,266 15,330 13,221, 
Investments in affiliated retail companies 597 600 609 
Assets of discontinued operations 68 69 69 

Total assets $18,931 $15,999 $13,899 
Capital expenditures—owned -:-r — 

General merchandise $ 1,110 $ 1,035 $ 635 
. Specialty retail 325 . 294 179 

Total capital expenditures $ 1,435 $ 1,329 $ 814 
Depreciation and amortization expense - — 

General merchandise $ 517 $ 443 $ ’ 405 
Specialty retail 168 146 126 

-Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 685 .$ 589 $ 531 
— — 

Leased asset additions for the general-merchandise group were $155 million, $137 million and $155 million for 1992,1991 and 1990, respec¬ 
tively. Leased asset additions for the specialty retail group were $30 million, $20 million and $5 million for 1992,1991 and 1990, respectively. 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

M—Pension Plans 

The company and its domestic subsidiaries have non- 

contributory pension plans covering most employees 

who meet certain requirements of age, length of service 

and hours worked per year. Benefits paid to retirees are 

based upon age at retirement, years of credited service 

and earnings. Kmart Canada Limited employees are 

covered by a defined contribution plan. The company’s 

policy is to fund at least the minimum amounts required 

by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 

1974. The plans’ assets consist primarily of equity 

securities, fixed income securities, guaranteed insurance 

contracts and real estate. The company contributed 

$86 million to its principal pension plan during fiscal 

1991, but was not required to contribute to its principal 

pension plan in fiscal 1992 or fiscal 1990. Pension ex¬ 

pense was $66 million in 1992, $63 million in 1991 and 

$55 million in 1990. 

For the company’s principal pension plans, the follow¬ 

ing tables summarize the funded status, components of 

pension cost and actuarial assumptions: 

January 27, January 29, January 30, 
(Millions) 1993 1992 1991 

Actuarial value of benefit obligations: 

Estimated present value of vested benefits $(1,103) $ (984) $ (794) 

Estimated present value of non-vested benefits (148) (141) (157) 

Accumulated benefit obligation (1,251) (1,125) (951) 

Value of future pay increases (265) (170) (205) 

Projected benefit obligation (1,516) (1,295) (1,156) 

Estimated market value of plan assets 1,388 1,307 1,070 

Plan assets over (under) projected benefit obligation (128) 12 (86) 

Unrecognized net asset * (111) (120) (128) 

Unrecognized prior service cost 55 • 60 64 

Unrecognized net (gain) loss and other 32 (57) 14 

Accrued pension costs $ (152). $ (105) $ (136) 

($ Millions) 1992 1991 1990 

Components of pension expense: 

Normal service cost ' * $ 57 . $ 51 $, 52 

Interest cost in projected benefit obligation 120 105 93 

Return on plan assets (118) (195) (61) 

Net amortization and deferral of other components (8) 88 (44) 

Total $ 51 $ 49 $ 40 

Actuarial assumptions at end of year: 

Discount rates '8.50% 8.75% 9.00% 

Expected return on plan assets 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 

Salary increases 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 
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M—Pension Plans (Continued) 

In December 1990, the Financial Accounting Standards 

Board issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 106 

“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits 

Other Than Pensions” (FAS 106). This statement re¬ 

quires employers to accrue for future postretirement 

benefits, such as health and life insurance, which are 

presently accounted for on a cash basis. Companies can 

elect to record the charge against income in the year the 

rules are adopted, or alternatively, on a prospective 

basis as a part of the future annual benefit cost. As 

required, the company will adopt the new rules as 

a cumulative effect of an accounting change in the 

first quarter of 1993. The resulting charge.will be 

$50 to $70 million, net of tax. On a prospective basis, 

FAS 106 will not have a material impact on earnings. 

N—Shareholders ’ Equity 

In October 1992, the company issued 784,938 shares of 

Series B convertible preferred stock in exchange for all 

the outstanding stock of Borders, Inc. Each share of 

Series B preferred stock is convertible by the holders at 

any time into 6.49 shares of common stock, subject to 

adjustment in certain events, and is redeemable into 

common stock by the company after November 1,1999 

at a redemption rate based on the then-current market 

price of the common stock. In addition, the holders of 

such stock have the right to compel the company to call 

50% of the outstanding stock for redemption into com¬ 

mon stock after November 1,1997, and to call 100% of 

the outstanding stock after November 1, 2002, at a re¬ 

demption rate based on the then-current market price 

of the common stock. The preferential dividend is 

$11.50 per share, subject to adjustment between 

November 1, 1996 and October 31,1998 if the market 

price of the common stock reaches a specified level. 

Common shares totaling 5,092,050 have been reserved 

for the conversion or redemption of the Series B 

convertible preferred shares. 

In August 1991, the company sold 23,000,000 $3.41 

Depositary Shares, each representing one-quarter of a 

share of Series A conversion preferred stock, for $44 per 

Depositary Share. Unless called for redemption prior to 

September 15 ,1994, each of the outstanding Depositary 

Shares will automatically convert into two shares of 

common stock of the company, subject to adjustment in 

certain events, on that date. The mandatory conversion 

factor and Kmart’s criteria for redemption of the 

Depositary Shares have been adjusted to reflect the 

common stock split distributed June 5, 1992. Forty-six 

46 

In addition, Financial Accounting Standard No. 112 

“Employers’ Accounting for Post Employment Bene¬ 

fits” (FAS 112) was issued in November 1992. FAS 112 

is an extension of the concepts underlying FAS 106 for 

similar benefits provided to terminated or laid-off em¬ 

ployees such as salary extension, severance, disability 

and supplemental unemployment benefits. Effective 

for fiscal years beginning after December 15,1993, 

Companies will be required to accrue for these benefits.. 

The company does: not expect the effect of this 

statement to be significant and will adopt FAS 112 

in the first quarter of 1993. 

million shares of common stock have been reserved for 

the conversion or redemption of the Series A conversion 

preferred shares. 

The holders of the Depositary Shares shall have the 

right to direct the Depositary to vote the Series A con- * 

version preferred shares represented by their Depositary 

Shares in the election of directors and upon each matter 

coming before the meeting of the stockholders on the 

basis of one vote for every four Depositary Shares held. 

The holders of Series B convertible preferred stock have 

the right to vote upon such matters on the basis of one 

vote per share held. The holders of Series A conversion 

preferred stock, the holders of Series B convertible 

preferred stock and the holders of common stock 

vote together as one class. 

The Series A conversion preferred stock and.the Series 

B convertible preferred stock rank senior to the common 

stock upon liquidation with respect to the amounts to 

which such preferred shareholders are entitled. 

Ten million shares of no par value.preferred stock with 

voting and cumulative dividend rights are authorized; 

5,750,000 are issued as Series A conversion preferred 

stock, 784,938 are issued as Series B convertible pre¬ 

ferred stock and 3,465,062 are unissued. Of the unis¬ 

sued, 500,000 shares have been designated Series A 

junior participating preferred stock. 

1 Each share of outstanding common stock includes a 

right which entitles the holder to one-thousandth of a 

share of Series A junior participating preferred stock at 

an exercise price of $110, or to purchase; at the right’s 

then-current exercise price, common shares having 
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a value twice the right’s exercise price. The rights are 

exercisable only if a person or group acquires, or 

attempts to acquire, ownership of 20% or more of the 

company’s common stock, or, if the person or group 

acquires 10% of the company’s common stock and the 

Board of Directors of the company determines that such 

ownership is adverse to the long-term interests of the 

company and its shareholders. 

Common and treasury shares outstanding and related 

changes for the three years ended January 27, 1993, 

January 29, 1992 and January 30, 1991 are as follows: 

Common Shares—Including Treasury Shares 1992 1991 1990 

Beginning of the year 

Sold under stock option plans 

Issued under performance restricted stock plan 

Issued under directors stock plan 

Forfeited or withheld under 

performance restricted stock plan 

Retirement of shares, at cost 

413,072,028 
2,500,110 

101,820 
1,481 

(35,233) 

. 409,421,174 

3,548,640 

117,836 

(15,622) 

409,837,986 

240,052 

80,418 

(4,536) 

(732,746) 

End of the year 415,640,206 413,072;028 409,421,174 

Treasury Shares 1992 1991 1990 

Beginning of the year 

Retirement of shares, at cost 

Reissue of shares for the Employee Savings Plan 

9,537,456 

(780,634) 

9,723,724 

(186,268) 

10,456,294 

(732,570) 

End of the year 8,756,822 9,537,456 -9,723,724 

O—Employee Savings Plan 

The Employee Savings Plan provides that employees of 

the company and certain subsidiaries who have attained 

. age 21 and completed one “Year of Service” can invest 

from 2% to 16% of their earnings in the employee’s 

choice of a growth equity fund, a balanced equity fund, 

a managed income fund or a Kmart common stock 

fund. For each dollar the employee invests up to 6% 

of his or her earnings, the company will contribute an 

additional 50 cents which is invested in the Employee 

Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP). 

As of June 17, 1986, 11,035,500 shares of Kmart 

common stock were made available for issuance or sale, 

to the Trustee, consisting of 5,035,500 treasury shares 

and 6,000,000 authorized but unissued shares. As of 

January 27,1993, 7,289,222 common shares remained 

available'. The company’s expense related to the 

Employee Savings Plan was $50 million for 1992 and 

$47 million for 1991 and 1990, respectively. 

P— Performance Restricted Stock Plan 

Under the Performance Restricted Stock Plan, the 

Compensation and Incentives Committee may grant 

awards for up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock to 

officers and other key employees through March 21, 

1998. The shares are issued only if specified perfor¬ 

mance goals are achieved. The shares are issued as 

restricted stock and are held in the custody of the 

company for a period up to three years. If conditions 

or terrhs under which an award is granted are not satis¬ 

fied, the shares are forfeited. At January 27,1993, out¬ 

standing awards and shares available for grant totaled 

836,999 and 3,038,247, respectively. The company re¬ 

corded $4 million, $3 million.and $2 million of compen¬ 

sation expense related to the Performance Restricted 

Stock Plan in 1992, 1991 and 1990, respectively. 
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Q—Stock Option Plans■ ■ 

Under the 1992 Stock Option Plan, the Compensation 

and Incentives Committee may grant options to acquire 

shares of common stock to officers and other key em¬ 

ployees at no less than 100% of the fair market value of 

the common stock on the date of grant. Such options 

may be either incentive stock options (ISOs) with a 

maximum term of ten years pursuant to Section 422 Of 

the Internal Revenue Code or non-qualified stock op¬ 

tions with a maximum term of 10 years and two days 

(NQSOs). Options become exercisable three years after 

the date of grant for the 1992 Stock Option Plan and 

two years after the date of grant for the 1973 and 1981 

Stock Option Plans. 

The ability to grant options under the 1973 and 1981 

Plans expired in August 1991 according to the terms of 

those Plans. 

Shares of common stock authorized for issuance under 

the 1992,1981 and 1973 Stock Option Plans were 

20,000,000, 24,000,000 and 21,000,000, respectively. 

Payment upon exercise of ah option may be made in 

cash, already owned shares or a combination of both 

according to the terms of those Plans. 

Pertinent information covering the Plans follows: 

1992 1991 

Number 
Of Shares 

Option Price 
Per Share 

Number 
of Shares 

Option Price 
Per Share 

Outstanding at beginning of year 

Granted 

Exercised 

Cancelled 

Outstanding at end of year 

20,220,670 
2,191,588 

(2,564,045) 
(358,346) 

19,489,867 

$ 6.44-523.03 
26.03 

9.90-21.94 
6.44- 26.03 

$ 9.90-526.03 

18,467,408 

5,939,700 

(3,718,336) 

(468,102) 

20,220,670 

$ 6.44-521.94 

20.66- 23.03 

6.52- 21.94 

6.44- 21.94 

. $ 6.44-523.03 

Exercisable at end of year 

Available for grant at end of year 

11,627,867 

17,704,000 

$ 9.90-521.94 11,892,170 

20,000,000 

5 6.44-521.94 
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R—Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

Each of the quarters includes 13 weeks. 

(Millions, except per-share data) Quarter 

1992 First Second Third Fourth 

Gross revenue $8,326 . $9,234 $8,922 .. $11,.641 
Cost of merchandise sold $6,247 $6,955 .$6,705 $ 8,578 

Net income $ 116 $ 168 $ 122 $ - 535 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share $ .26 $ . .37 ' • . $ .27 $ 1.15 

Quarter 

1991 First Second Third Fourth 

Gross revenue $7,706 ■ $8,495 . $8,050 $10,718 
Cost of merchandise sold - , ' $5,747 $6,309 $5,981 $ .7,893 

Net income $ 107 $ 163 $ 109 S' 479 
Earnings per common, and common equivalent Share $ .27 $ .40 $ .25- $ 1.06 

Net income for the fourth quarters of 1992 and 1991 include net LIFO credits of $50 million and $35 million, 

respectively. 

Quarterly Stock Market Information and Dividend Highlights: 

Quarter 

1992 First Second Third Fourth 

Dividends paid per common share 

Common stock price range 

$ .22 $ .23 $ .23 $ .23 

High $ 27 $ 26/2 ■$ 25/2 $ 27/4 
Low $ 22/s $ 21/8 ' $ 21/2 . $■ 23/s 

Dividends paid per $3.41 Depositary Share 

( !4 share, Series A conversion preferred) 

$3.41 Depositary Share price range 

$ .85 $ .85 $ .85 ' $ .85 

High $ 49 $ 48/2 $ 50 H $ 51/8 
Low 

Dividends paid per Series B 

$ 45/ $ 43 v% $ 44 Vs $ 4m 

convertible preferred share $ - - ■ $ - $ $ 1.44 ' 

Quarter 

1991 First Second Third Fourth 

Dividends paid per common share $ .21 $ .22 $ .22 ’$ .22 

Common stock price range 

High. $ 207/s $ 24/4 $ 24/s $. 23/8 
Low ' ... $ 12/8 $ 19/4 ' $ 20/a $ 19/8 

Dividends paid per $3.41 Depositary Share 

(lA share, Series A conversion preferred) $ — $ — $ .21 $ .85 

$3.41 Depositary Share price range 

High $ $ $ ' 47/4 $ 48/8 
Low $ — $ — $ 43 /4 $ 41/4 
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J. Richard Munro 

Thomas F. Murasky 

Donald S. Perkins 

Retired Chairman of the Board 

of Jewel Companies, Inc. 

Gloria M. Shatto 

President of Berry College 

Joseph R. Thomas 

Executive Vice President 

Health Care Committee 

Joseph A. Califano, Jr., Chair 

Lilyan H. Affinito 

Joseph E. Antonini 

Kevin E Browett 

Richard S. Miller 

Donald L. Morford 

Thomas M. Nielsen 

Gloria M. Shatto 

Nominating Committee 

Donald S. Perkins, Chair. 

Willie D. Davis 

Enrique C. Falla 

Joseph P. Flannery 

F. James McDonald 

J. Richard Munro 

Public Issues Committee 

David B. Harper, Chair 

Willie D. Davis 

Richard S. Miller 

Gloria M. Shatto 

Joseph R. Thomas 
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Officers (os of February 1 

Joseph E. Antonini 

Chairman of the Board, 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Executive Vice Presidents 

Richard S. Miller 

US. Kmart Stores 

George R. Mrkonic 

Specialty Retailing 

Thomas F. Murasky 

Chief Financial Officer 

Anthony N. Palizzi 

General Counsel 

Glenn B. Smith 

Merchandising 

Joseph R. Thomas 

International and Administration 

Senior Vice Presidents 

David M. Carlson 

Corporate Information Systems 

Frederic M. Comins, Jr. 

Executive and. 

Organization Resources 

Donald W. Keeble 

General Merchandise 

Manager-Fashions 

Anthony R. Mauro 

Distribution and Transportation 

Thomas H. Nigolian 

Store Planning and Interior Design 

Michael L. Skiles 

Corporate Facilities 

William D. Underwood 

General Merchandise 

Manager- Hardlines 

Thomas W. Watkirts 

International Operations 

1993) 

Vice Presidents 

James P. Churilla 
Treasurer 

James E. Ford 

East/Central Region 

Gerald K. Habeck 

Advertising 

Paul J. Hueber 

West/Central Region 

Nancie W, LaDuke 

Secretary 

Michael T. Macik 

Human Resources- 

US. Kmart Stores 

James L. Moser 

Corporate Identity and 

Quality Assurance 

Thomas M. Nielsen 

Executive Resources 

Peter J. Palmer 

Labor Relations and 

Assistant General Counsel 

William H. Parker 

President of Reader's 

Market Division 

Jay D. Scussel 

Systems Development 

A. Robert Stevenson 

Public A ffairs 

John S. Valenti 

Southern Region 

Michael G. Wellman 

Marketing 

Subsidiary Presidents 

Donald A. Beaumont 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Kmart Canada Limited 

Charles R. Cumello 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Walden Book Company, Inc. 

Robert F. DiRomualdo 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer ■ 
Borders, Inc. 

Frank G. Felicella 

President and 

Chief Executive Off ice r 

Builders Square, Inc. 

Michael Feuer 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

OfficeMax, Inc. 

Thomas R. Grimm 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. 

Timothy R. McAlear 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

Pay Less Drug Stores 

Northwest, Inc. 

Jack A. Smith 

President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

The Sports Authority, Inc. 
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Corporate Data 

Executive Offices 

Kmart Corporation 

3100 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(313)643-1000 

Subsidiaries 

Borders, Inc. 
Ann Arbor, Michigan 

Builders Square, Inc. 

San Antonio, Texas 

Kmart Canada Limited 

Brampton, Ontario, Canada 

OfficeMax, Inc. 

Shaker Heights; Ohio 

PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. 

Englewood, Colorado 

Pay Less Drug Stores Northwest, Inc. 

Wilsonville, Oregon 

The Sports Authority, Inc. 

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 

Walden Book Company, Inc. 

Stamford, Connecticut . 

Annual Meeting 

The Annual Meeting will be held Tuesday, May 25, 

1993, at 9:00 a.m., at Kmart International Headquar¬ 

ters, 3100 West Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan. 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

Common Stock 

NBDBank, N.A. 
Detroit, Michigan 

Mailing Address: 

Securities Transfer Services 

P.O.Box 8204 

Boston, Massachusetts 02266-8204 

1-800-336-6981 

Preferred Stock ' 

The First Chicago Trust Company of New York 

Mailing Address: 

The First Chicago Trust Company of New York 

30 West Broadway 

New York, New York 10007 

1-800-446-2617 

Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports 

A copy of the company’s 1992 Form 10-K annual report 

to the Securities and Exchange Commission will be 

furnished without charge to any shareholder upon 

written request. 

Quarterly reports are furnished to shareholders of 

record by the company’s stock transfer agent. Any 

shareholder whose stock is not registered in the 

shareholder’s name will be furnished quarterly reports 

without charge upon written request. 

All written requests should be directed to: 

Kmart Corporation 

Corporate Reporting Department 

3100 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 

Kmart Corporation common stock shareholders of 

record may elect to have dividends automatically rein¬ 

vested in additional shares of Kmart common stock. 

They may also purchase shares by investing cash pay¬ 

ments'of $25 to $100,000, but not more than a total of 

$100,000 in any one calendar year. There is no brokerage 

commission or charge for this service. Participation is 

entirely voluntary and can be easily terminated. 

Requests for additional information about this plan, 

or any questions about common stockholdings or 

dividends, should be directed to: 

Securities Transfer Services 

Dividend Reinvestment Department 

P.O.Box8204 , 

Boston, Massachusetts 02266-8204 

or to: 

Kmart Corporation 

Investor Relations Department 

3100 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

Should you wish to communicate with Securities 

Transfer Services about your Kmart common stock¬ 

holdings or dividends by telephone, you may do so 

by calling: 

1-800-336-6981. 
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Kmart Corporation 

3100 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 


